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Rey
financia
highlights

Sportingbet has had a solid start to the new
financial year, with amounts wagered up 10%
in the first two months We were admitted to
the Official List of the UKLA in May 2010 with
subsequent entry into the FTSE 250 index,
reached a Non-Prasecution Agreement with
the US, and declared a final dividend of 1 Op,
making a total 2010 dividend of 1 5p

(2009 1 Op)

Financial highlights for the year {continuing operations)
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Amounts wagered

Net gaming revenue
EBITDA*

Adjusted operating profit*
Group operating profit
Adjusted diluted EPS* {p})
Diluted EPS (p)

Net cash**

2010 2009
£m Em %
1,9713 1,577 2 250
2075 1636 268
465 397 171
354 311 138
71 219 (67 6)
6.2 60 42
0.7 42 (82 8)
34.2 238 437

|
*  Adjusted to exclude exceptional items of £24 5m (2009 £4 2m), share option charge and amortisation

** Net of long term debt and customer habilities




10.3%
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Industry-leading gross
margin for Eurcpean
sports (2009 10.2%)

15%

Percentage increase in
amounts wagered year
on year to £1,979m

61%

ssEssEsAIIEBABLESIIISINEISITIRE S

Percentage of European
sports revenue from

in play - a strong
performance for 2010
{2009 56%)

17%
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EBITDA up 17%
to £46 5m

14%

Percentage Increase
in adjusted operating
profit to £35 4m

£H0m

Excellent World Cup
with over £50m staked
throughout

Operational
Highlights

Graduation

Advancing from AIM to the Official List was a
key achievement of the financial year This move
strengthens our credibility as a leading global
gaming Group, and enhances our position

of seeking fair and equitable regulation and
taxation in all junsdictions we operate in The
benefits of legality, stability, freedom to advertise
and creation of stiff barriers to entry for new
competitors outweigh the cost of compliance
with new regulation

Targets achieved

Our annual targets have been repeatedly met
despite significant industry and political turmoll
Realistic yet challenging targets were set in
2007 and have been reached without revision
or change in our directrion

Diversity

QOur breadth of customer base and product range
provides stability throughout difficult econormic
times and dilutes ocperational risk

03
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Our mission

To be the world’s best online betting service,
offering customers an unprecedented number
of sports betting opportunities along with a
full suite of casino, games and poker

Our strategy

To provide a first-class online sports betting
product to a geographically diverse customer
base Qur teams are dedicated to continually
developing and improving our websites so
that existing and new customers alike are
offered the very best product and service

Our game plan

Future growth

Further geographic expansion 1s equally htgh
on our prionty ist We seek to take advantage
of increasing broadband penetration and the
general growth in the global sports betting
market, with Eastern Europe and South
America currently dominating our focus




Such geographical expansion and diversification not only
tncreases our customer base and revenue streams but it
also helps to minimise the potential risk from prohibitive
regulation In an industry that s prone to an ever-changing
regulatory environment we have recently introduced a new
regulation team to oversee all regulatory 1ssues that may,
and in fact do, face the Sportingbet Group The abilty for
the Group to adjust to changing pelitical environments
throughout the world will become a key driver of future
business and the introduction of this team Is our next step
in recognising this Swift yet well-considered action entering
new terntories can establish first mover advantage or avoid
penods which are not viable when the correct strategy 1s
to allow the regulatory framework to settle first The four
most populous nations in the world (China, India, USA
and Indonesia) are yet to legalise online gambling proving
that the industry s still immature, however the wheels

of change are lkely to turn slowly in those countrnies Itis
therefore wital that we stay abreast of the situatton In these
junsdictions so that we can maintain our leadership across
the globe

Such developments in our company structure form part of
our focus on maximising our operational flexibiity which we
believe 15 paramount to the future success of Sportingbet In
what remains an immature industry

Other ways we have introcduced such flexibility can be
seen In the way we contact our customers [n the |ast few
years we have integrated new and improved customer
relationship management tools and systems to help us
differentiate between and segment our customers

th.7m

I I LR R R T T T P YN Y ]

Net gaming revenue
denved from European
basketball alone
Basketball 1s one of
the most popular
sports we offer.

In IT, we have solved resourcing problems by developing
and changing the way we work with our third parties and
contractors We can now tallor the number of people
working on a specfic project depending on the vanous
influences on the IT business — be 1t budget or a change
In priorities — in a very short time penod Additionally in
IT, we have introduced a 24/7 presence by linking support
teams from London with a new team based in India

Our trading team (based In Guernsey) can now see the
games they are trading on across the world 24/7, making
our prices more expertly driven and dynamic rather than
automated hke so many of cur competitors

Sportingbet has a long history of successful B2B partnerships
QOur largest markets — Turkey, Spain, Greece, Bulgana -

all started out as partnerships Some ran their course and
were brought in-house Where we have good alignment

on corporate objectives with our Greek partner, we continue
1o enjoy a dose and strategically vital relationship

There are two dynamics at work prompting a potential
second wave of B2B

¢ The leading pack of sports operators, including
Sportingbet, has pulled away from the rest of the
market i terms of product differentiation
This differentiation in product offering breadth and
trading expertise 1s difficult and expensive to replicate

¢ The move from a pan-European operating mode! to
individual terntory regulation erects further barriers
to entry The complexty and expense involved
in obtaiming licences and fulfilling their technical
requirements further plays to scale as a strength

Our sportsbook product becomes increasingly valuable
and difficult to rephcate There are a number of different
potential types of partner who recognise this

¢ Offline operators looking to move online

¢ Media and marketing groups looking to enter newly
regulated markets

* Casino and poker operators without a sports offenng

+ Existing sports operators with a sub-scale or
sub-standard offering

We aim to take advantage of a hmited number of
significant opportunities

05
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Our game plan

Our strategy 1s focused on sport Sport 1s

our core business - It Is 1 our company name,
it1s 1in our blood It 1s what sets us apart

from our rvals

Why focus on sport?

Sports betting offers greater scope for differentiation
than other products With over a decade of experience
and a commanding product knowledge Sportingbet
dominates in many markets across the world, making

it increasingly more difficult for our competitors to enter
the same markets at the same level An industry-leading
trading team, a dearly defined, highly wisible brand name
with a strong international presence and best-in-class
trading technology fully owned and developed internally
all combine to make Sportingbet a significant player in the
online gambling industry Success in poker is intrinsically
linked to iquidity where the biggest network wall win
the game

Casino games offer imited scope for product differentiation
and beyond marketing there are limsted barriers to entry for
rival comparies Regulatory policy for games of chance can
differ significantly from sports betting and poker Australia
and France are two examples of jurisdictions which currently
prohibit online casino operations, and there 1s nsk of other
nations holding a similar ideology Casinos are traditionally
more cychical businesses and discretionary spend on games
are more at nsk of being affected by economic 1ssues than
sports betting or poker

Our customers [ive and breathe sport, and receive the
service deserved by sports fans - a premium quality
wagering experience on sporting events across the

globe Our vast range of markets and innovative betting
opportunities reinfarce our aim to offer something to bet
on every minute of every hour of every day Our sports
betting portfolio offers competitive, but not margin-
sacrificng, odds with the opportunity of substantial
payouts In play betting continues to drive the business
with over 60% of amounts wagered now in bets placed
after the event has commenced We expect this trend to
continue as streaming technologies iImprove Gross win
margins remain strong, desprte fewer selections and tighter
margins generally avallable on in play markets




Performance

This year we delivered sustained growth across the
business as net gaming revenue increased by 26 8% and
total amounts wagered grew by 25 0% A strong trading
performance throughout the year capped off by a record
World Cup tournament returned an industry-leading gross
sports margin of 10 3% despite economic disruption in
two of our major markets, Greece and Spain

Although major football tournaments such as the World
Cup create a cyclical effect, the Company 15 best placed
to mirumise this reaction with our best-in-class breadth of
product providing sporting events to bet on at all times

Customer services

Based in Dublin, our mult award-winning customer services
tearmn continually raise the standards for customer contact
and service A resolute focus on the customer and quality of
service has delivered awards from within the industry, in the
wider business community and from government training
authonties The 180-strong team are responsible for over
26 domains, speak a total of 32 languages and handle
over 1 5m contacts annually Technology provides the tocls
to deliver standards of excellence, with 30% of contacts
handled immediately, via live chat or telephone

200+

CeBesEISIIRESIEREIEERENI RS

Number of football
leagues covered and
traded by Sportingbet.
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Trading teams

As competitors seek to automate trading processes and
use common suppliers for essential services, we stand out
amongst our rivals as the company which offers a better,
more complete experence for the sporting expert We believe
the people behind the website add significantly more value
to the customer than robotic systems programmed to avoid
nsk Our investrnent in our trading team In recent years
has created a team of expenenced specialists, delivering an
industry-leading profit margin in tandem with an unrivalled
breadth of product from all parts of the globe

We hold competitive advantage in our market-leading
sportsbook platform, which has been developed completely
in-house and the intellectual property behind 1t 1s one of
the company’s most valuable assets Improvements to the
website and trading platform have significantly reduced
transaction processing times, and speedier settlerment
processes allow cur customers to reinvest ther winnings
faster Our investment in IT development will be sustained
to ensure we stay ahead of the competition and make
Sportingbet com the first choice for sports fans around
the world
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|_ocation:

AUSTRALIA

89% growth in new customers
due to mainstream advertising
since the regulation on gambling
advertising was introduced
two years ago.

A$80 million

---------------------------------------------------------------

Consistent with increased activity and registration,
margin has a positive growth since 2005 A growth
of 27% 1n 2010 to almost A$80m

18%  10%

----------------------------------------------------------

Percentage Increase Percentage Increase
in internet bets taken in internet net gaming
A total of 17m thus year revenue
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Our
Nnternationc
mpact

Our deliberately diverse portfolio of customers
breeds stability and mitigates trading and
operational risk While competitors’ annual
results can swing heavily on the fortunes of
the England football team or favourites at the
Cheltenham Festival, our spread of customers
and the events they bet on deliver consistently
strong profits throughout the year

Europe

The Group's strong growth 1s underpinned by the success
of our customer acquisition strategies — growing the
customer base steadily across all terntories Technology
improvements to deliver a broader range of products

have resulted in an increase in bets and yield per customer
although the average stake decreased shghtly The benefits
of over a decade of operation are reinforced in the long-
term margin improvements resulting from the continuing
maturity of our trading strategy and team

In difficult economic times, our European performance

has remained strong Despite our largest markets in Greece
and Spain suffening most from the recession, net gaming
revenue still rose in both countries with Greece +20%

year on year and Spain showing strong growth on sports
to offset weaker casino spend, despite marketing
investment in these two countnes being reduced as

a nsk minimisation strategy




We welcome the introeduction of fair and equitable
regulation in several EU states however tax regimes which
favour the incumbent state-owned operators such as the
situation in France create unviable commercial propositions
Qur strategy to wathdraw from France will be re-assessed
when licensing conditions are changed to allow international
operators to be fairty rewarded for the high cost of entering
the market

As the event calendar of sport proves advantageous to

the betting side of our business, other products, particularly
casino and games, are more susceptible to economic issues
Reducticns in discretionary spend directly affect these
products and thus restrict growth
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Our international iImpact

Australia

Australian figures continue to grow after the refaxation of
advertising laws in the previous financial year Horse racing
dominates the revenue figures as a legacy of the acquired
business and legistative restrictions on in play sports betting
online Australian horse racing is seasonal, peaking for
premier events in the autumn and spring of the southern
hermisphere, but figures remain strong throughout the year,
desprte short-term volatiity Periods of high margin due to
favourable results lead to a reduction in the recychng of
funds, impacting total amounts wagered

Heawvy investment in offline marketing has generated
strong brand exposure across a variety of media and the
launch of a new website and a localised mobile platform
during the year improved acquisition and revenues

across multiple channels

yi

Percentage growth in
sports betting Whilst
horse racing 1s the
dominant revenue
generatof, sports
betting 1s growing
consistently

Percentage total active
growth The Australian
active database shows
remarkable growth
consistent with the
greater emphasis on
offline marketing and
customer retention
programmes

$38m

TN NN T PPN T Y I Y

Internet margin up 35%
to A$38m

The cantinued growth of the client base leaves us well
positioned in Australia if and when the Interactive Gaming
Act of 2001 1s amended or rescinded Online casino and
poker 15 also currently banned under the Act, although
strong lobbying pressure from throughout the mdustry

1s being applied To date, there has been no indication
whether the Federal Government will act on the adwice
from the Productiity Commission which recommended
permitting online casino and poker operations to be
based in Australia rather than send customers offshore,
and remowving the restriction on in-running betting online
The current legislation only serves to penalise those operators
that respect laws of the land and force customers to bet
with offshore firms




Emerging markets

In accordance with the Board’s desire for a broad
geographical base, we continue to invest in our Emerging
Markets divisian The principal focus of the Emerging
Markets division has been the fast growing South American
and South African markets The performance of the dwision
during the last year has been strong with sports amounts
wagered increasing by 154% from £26 9m to £68 3m
While the World Cup in South Africa undoubtedly helped to
stimulate activity within the sports product the underlying
growth within the business remains extremely robust

In the South Amencan region the Group has made
significant progress In Brazil The combination of localised
products and services with a global sports offering has
been positively received The Sportingbet brand has been
well estabhshed and the market continues to display all
the charactenstics we would expect to see from a growth
market Using the knowledge acquired from the bullding of
the Brazilian business the Group has expanded 1ts offering
to target other markets in the region

in the South Afncan market the Group operates a
sportshook under a license 1ssued by the Western Cape
Gambling Board The license was obtained in December
2008 as a result of a partnership with a local operator

The licensing framework offered by the Western Cape
Gambling Board prowides an environment within which
the Group feels it can develop a sustainable and profitable
business The South African market undoubtedly represents
an excellent opportunity for the Group to establish a
claim in one of the fastest growing frontier markets for
online gaming

13
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Sport

The quality and performance of our sportsbook preduct is
one of our greatest prionties In the last finanaal year almost
£2 billon was staked on sports alone with Sportingbet,
contnbuting to 70% of overall revenues

Although football remains the most popular sport, a huge
range of sports and leagues from all over the world are
avallable to bet on at Sportingbet In play betting has been
the area of fastest growth for us in the past few years and
now accounts for over 60% of bets placed We have made
significant investments into the devetopment of our In play
product to improve the customer expenence and support
and sustain this growth

One of the main additions has been the introduction of live
streaming of events to our website Sportingbet customers
(except for those based in the UK and Scandinavia) can
watch and bet on an extensive range of events ranging
from European, Asian and South Amencan football to horse
racing, basketball, snocker, darts and many others As the
official sponsor, we are also the only online gambling
company offering live strearming of every Euroleague
Basketball game

everywhere

Sport Is at the core of Sportingbet With an
iIndustry leading breadth of product, a 24/7
global in play offering and above industry
average margins, whilst remaining price
competitive, we believe we are the world's

best online betting service




The combination of hve streaming and the continual addition
of new betting markets means that our customers are able
to bet on a huge variety of markets throughout an event,
from start to finish Durning the 2010/11 football seasan, our
custorners will have over 4,000 smultaneous in play markets
avallable on busy Saturday afternoons

Central to our sportsbook product Is the strength of our
trading team and tools, which have consistently delivered
industry leading margin percentage This margin consistency
has been achieved by the dversification of

risk in a number of ways

* Qur scale and geographic footprint means we have a
large customer base and we are not rel:ant on sporting
results from any individual country

» The huge vanety of events and compettions offered
means our performance 1s not governed by the results
of any single league or competition

* The breadth of betting opportunities offered on each
game means our nsk is not entirely dependent on the
outright wainner of an event

» Significant investment 1s made into the development
of proprietary trading tools and the development of
our trading team

We strive to provide the best online sports betting
experience via a secure, user-friendly and engaging
interface With a 24/7 product, Sportingbet offers
customers innovative betting opportunities every
minute of every hour of every day

£06.5m

SBsssEABERSARSERERIINR SRR LIRS

Net gaming revenue
generated from in play
alone in 2009 - 2010

15
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UNITED
KINGDOM

On 14 May 2010 Sportingbet
moved onto the Official List of
the London Stock Exchange.

/1121 3.9m

--------------------------------------------------------

Number of active Total number of bets
customers in 2009 - placed this year up 7%
2010 Anincrease of to 3 9 million

9% over last year

t94m  6.7%

--------------------------------------------------------

Total stakes of amounts Sports gross margin.
wagered up to £94m
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While sports betting will always remain the
focus of our business, we wish to provide
the complete customer experience to retain
a greater share of our customers’ overall
gaming spend.

Regular additions to the number of casino games,
particularly flash-based and live dealer table games available
on the site have increased revenues, particularly in Greece
and Eastern Europe

These products assisted Europe's casine and games offering,
which accounted for 22% of the Group’s net gaming revenue
We currently have over 170 games from across the most
popular gaming categories — Roulette, Blackjack, Slots and
Live Dealer games

Poker continues to suffer as part of a global trend where
hguidity advantages are realised by competing firms prepared
to accept US resident players The ParadisePoker Tour 1S
ParadisePoker com’s flagship promotion which runs throughout
Europe The tour conducts six tournaments throughout Europe
(Portugal, UK, Denmark, Czech Republic, Spain and Bulgana)
in a synergy between onhne and offline actvity, and boosts
our profile in several of our key terntories Customers can
qualfy exclusively to take part in the ParadisePoker Tour

only at ParadisePoker com

Supplementary

products




A new three-year agreement was struck in the second
quarter with GTech G2 (formerly Boss), our poker, download
casino and flash-based games provider The contract provides
that Gtech G2 will be the exclusive supplier of poker and
download casino unless otherwise agreed on a country

by country basis

A major improvement for our casino and poker customers
was implemented 1n the first half of the year, with players
no longer required to transfer funds between products

or log-in to each product separately A bet-by-bet funds
transfer system now operates for casino table games and
table level buy-in for poker, allowing simultanecus play
across multiple products in real-time This represents a
significant step forward in customer experience and the
IT archutectural work behind it means future integrations
with new games suppliers will be simpler and faster

Guaranteed pnize in the
inaugural ParadisePoker
Tour 2010

£3m

Potential jackpot available
to customers from October
2010 when ParadiseCasino
is rolled out onto the Net
Entertainment network.
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GREECE

It has been a tough year for
the Greek economy but our
numbers held strong.

£200 million

----------------------------------------------------------------

Amounts wagered over £200m on
9 7 million bets placed

15%  12.6%

Percentage increase of Sports margin
net gaming revenue on percentage
prior year.

110,715

----------------------------------------------------------------

Active customers increased by 21% year on year
to 110,715
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Stnce the formation of Sportingbet In 1998 we have
always sought to exhibit responsible and ethical practices
The Company’s culture was formalised in 2000 in a seres
of written statements entitled Customer Charter and
Code of Conduct Since then these statements have been
available for viewing on the Sportingbet website and
continue to illustrate the Company’s social responsibility
to our customers, 1o our shareholders and to the
governments of markets in which we operate

Corporate social
responsibility




Overview

The Company's objective 1s to provide a ‘protected
entertainment environment’ in which our customer care
programmes give responsible aduits the confidence of
knowing that their money 1s safe, whilst providing the
Company with the confidence that all reasonable steps
are being taken to protect the vulnerable

Social Responsibility Committee

The Committee 1s chatred by Non-Executive Director,
Brian Harns, and its other members are Sean O’Connor,
Non-Executive and Senior Independent Director, and the
Company's General Counsel, Daniel Talisman, who also
acts as the Committee’s Secretary The Committee met
three times durning the last financial year The Audit &
Comphance Manager and the Group Head of Human
Resources attend its meetings and the Group Chuef
Executive 1s appraised of the Committee’s work at

least twice In the course of the year

The Committee 1s responsible for reviewing the
Company’s policies on corporate social responsibility
and stimulating Group-wide best practice on matters
including age venfication, fraud, money laundering,
responstble gaming, self-exclusion and privacy

Appropriate recommendations are made to the
Company’s Board Terms of Reference can be viewed
on www sportingbetplc com and are available in
writing on request

23

Customers

As a service business, the core of Sportingbet’s policies

on social responsibility lies in 1ts approach to its customers
All operational directors and managers are committed

to winning and retaining the trust and loyalty of our
customers

The guiding principle behind Sportingbet’s policies can

be summanised as 'Know Your Customer’ Procedures

to achieve this mean far more than merely ccllecting
documentary evidence of people's Identities It s about
understanding their indiadual requirements, appreciating
concerns and closely researching their patterns of behaviour

Knowling one’s customers and creating profiles of thetr
activities and preferences leads to targeted and appropriate
marketing strategies This lies at the heart of the Company’s
Customer Relationship Management policies

The way different customers spend money and what
they spend it on prowvides an overall understanding of their
motivation For almost all of the Company’s customers
online gambling 1s an entertanment pastime, and
Sportingbet’s products, promations and culture make ther
relatonship with the Company an enjoyable experience

It 15 the small minonty, however, who may be potential
fraudsters, underage gamblers or problem players that result
in the need for comprehensive systems and procedures to
protect the Company and, often, the customer Of course,
nothing can ever be entirely secure against determined
offenders, but the Company commits much time and
investment to finding organisational and software driven
approaches to excluding the vulnerable and identifying fraud

With the advent of multi-player environmenits such

as poker, the Company s particularty vigilant about the
risk of collusion or irregular fund movements between
partictpants  Systems have been designed to highlight
unusual or concerning patterns of play
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Corporate social responsibility

Employees

The Board of Sportingbet is of the firm belef that the
Company's success is due to the quality and commitment
of its workforce The Company’s employee management
pnonties, including its remuneration strategies, are based
on recrurting and retaming the best people in the industry
and on encouraging working practices that improve
productmty, reduce costs, develop talent and give job
satisfaction

Further, the Board recognises the need for communication
with employees at every level Weekly sales notes and

all quarterly results announcements are circulated to
employees and copies of the Annual Report and Accounts
are also made available too The Company ts committed
to developing ongoing communicatian with all of its
employees This is achieved through a vanety of channels,
including the Group's Intranet, to ensure that everyone is
informed of the Group’s progress and recognises the key
roles that they, as employees, play in Sportingbet’s success
Further, the Group 15 committed to a policy of equal
opportunity in matters relating to emplayment, training
and career development of employees and 1s opposed

to any form of less favourable treatment afforded on

the grounds of age, disability, sex, mantal status, sexual
orientation, nationality, race or religion

Trade and charitable organisations

The Company recogrises the obligation upon the gaming
industry to demonstrate its commitment to self-regulation
The Company 1s supportive of the role that the industry’s
trade associations can play in this regard and Sportingbet
15 an active member of the Remote Gambling Association
{RGA) holding a seat on its Executive Committee and
being represented on various RGA sub-committees

The Company has signed up to the RGA’s Codes on
Social Responsibiity and Age Verfication, the provisions
of which the Committee endorses

Sportingbet invests time and resources in meeting
and communicating with officers and politicians of
governments, and national online garming hicensing
authonties The Company’s management remains
committed to playing its part in promoting the value
of legislation that will lead to a regulated approach

to the industry, not least as a mechanism for protecting
the vulnerable elements of their societies from
unscrupulous operators

Recognising that some customers may be affected by
gambling dependency, the Company has continued to
provide funding In the UK to The GREaT Foundation
formerly known as the Responsibility in Gambling Trust
The Companyhas also made donations to the following
organisations and charities the Island Academy
International School in Antigua, HEROS (Home Ex-
Racehorses Qrganisation Scheme), the Motor Neurone
Disease Research, Friends of Israel Sport Centre for

the Disabled, The Dan Maskell Tennis Trust, Headway
(a local Guernsey charnty), and the Bishop Simeon

Trust In South Afnca




Community liaison

In order to encourage a socially integrated work environment,
the Company has placed an emphasis on investing tn the
local communities in which it operates In Guernsey, where
the Company’s primary licence and operations are based,
the Company has invested a significant amount of time and
money into the local community, induding the sponscrships
of Heather Watson {ranked as the Britsh Junior Number One)
prior to her joning the Women's WTA Tour, the Channel
{slands Athletics Club, and local events like the Sportingbet
Guernsey Marathon and the Sportingbet Channel tslands
Sports Personality of the Year Awards

In Antigua, where the Group has held sports betting and
gaming licences for many years, the Company continues to
donate a significant sum of money to the Island Academy
International School to fund bursanes for a number of less
privileged local children

In the United Kingdom, Sportingbet supports the Home
Office funded scheme, Tackling Knives Action Programme

In the West Midlands, this programme has been iImplemented
through “Braveheart” — a scheme which takes youth leaders,
policemen, former gang members and community workers
into the Scottish Islands for a week to iImprove their leadership
skills, self reliance and confidence In conjunction with the
Wolverhampton Wanderers FC Community Trust, Sportingbet
has sponsored three of its employees to act as members and
to join youth leaders on this scheme, and 1s working with
West Midlands police and community groups in the area

to encourage other companies to join the “Braveheart”
programme

25
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EASTERN
tUROPE

Sportingbet launched into

Its ninth Eastern European
territory in 2009/10; Romania.
Eastern Europe now accounts
for 14% of total net gaming
revenue.

lom  95%

------------------------------------------------------------

Over 16 million bets placed  Growth in new customers
throughout Eastern Europe  across Eastern Europe
over the year in 2010.
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In the last 12 months we have invested heavily
tin sport Major sponsorship agreements are
now In place with a variety of different teams
and sporting events

Sportingbet first signed a two year deal with Wolverhampton
Wanderers FC back in May 2009 to becorne the club’s official
shirt spansor We have recently extended this contract for a
further two years to help promote our brand across the UK
and internationally Wolverhampton Wanderers are one of
the most historic clubs in English football, now playing in the
Premier League after successfully secuning ther place for

the second consecutive season

Sponsorship:

Investing 1n sport




Euroleague basketball 1s the most prestigious European
basketball competition with the top club sides from up

to 18 Furopean nations coming together In @ continental
championship We have been the official sponsor of the
championship since 2006 Qur partnership wath Euroleague
basketball ncludes an exclusive agreement for hve streaming
of all the games to our customer base (excuding custorners
in the UK and Scandinawvia) Our status as Official Global
Sponsor of Euroleague basketball s used to create greater
awareness for our brand across multiple territortes in Europe
as well as solidify our strong position in the basketball
marketplace Cur commitment to the highest form of
competitive basketball in Europe reflects our customer
interest in a wide range of top fight sports

Over the summer we signed a two-year agreement to
become the official betting partner of English Test Match
Cricket Grounds and became the official betting partner
of Leeds United on their return to the second tier of English
football, the Championship

In addition, we sponsored over 75 individual horse races
throughout the summer, including Monday evening
racing at Windsor Racecourse In conjunction with our
commitment to horse racing, we are the main supporter
of HEROS, the leading chanty dedicated to the welfare
of former racehorses to ensure they have a comfortable
existence beyond their racing career
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Further sponsorships across Europe include:
» Hull Kingston Rovers (UK Rugby League)

e FK Austria Wien (Austrian football)

SC Wiener Neustadt {(Austrian football)

Real Betis (Spanish football)

Real Oviedo (Spamish football)

Real Racing de Santander {Spanish football)
Sant Andreu (Spanish football}

¢ Cultural Leonesa (Spanish faotball)

¢ (B Estudiantes {Spanish basketball)

In Australia, we invest heavlly In the three most popular
betting sports harse racing, (with partnerships with the
Melbourne Racing Club, the Moonee Valley Racing Club
and the South Australian Jockey Club), rugby league, {with
sponsarship of powerhouse NRL club, the Brisbane Broncos),
and Austrahan Rules football (with sponsorship of one of
the most popular AFL clubs, Carlton)

We believe In being part of the sports offering and will
support sport and the community via sponsorship wherever
possible because 1t 1s the right thing to do, not just for
commercial gain

in an era where rival firms are moving operations offshore
to avoid taxes and levy, we are the only company to voluntanly
pay the full levy amount on UK horseracing as if the trading
operations were based onshore These figures are validated
by our auditors




30

Sportingbet Plc Company Number 3534726
Annual Report 2009/2(410

The Sportingbet Sporting Ambassador
Programme 1s designed to involve our
customers and the sporting community

more In our sports coverage and particularly,
our sponsorshtp campaigns Our ambassadors
are legends in therr field with a natural rapport
with fans and punters alike They represent
Sportingbet at public events and perfarm
ceremonial duties such as award presentations

Ambassadors

Cricket

Alec Stewart OBE

Capped 133 times for his country in Test matches and
on 170 occasions in one-day internationals, the former
England captain 1s a Sportingbet brand ambassador

Throughout the season, Stewart keeps fans up to date
with betting tips from Sportingbet and on the ball cricket
action via his weekly Sunday Mirror column




Football

Steve Bull MBE

The Wolves legend scored over 300 goals in all competitions
for the Midlands club and achieved the rare feat of being
selected for England while playing in the Third Division

He played 13 games in all for his country yet only played
one game In the top fight of English football, before he
Jjoined Wolverhamptan Bull's loyalty to the club, rapport
with the fans and passton for the game earned him his
legendary status at the club, and later, an MBE for services
1o Association Football

Dominic Matteo

The former Leeds captain is fondly remembered at Elland Rd
for sconng a goal against AC Milan at the San Siro in Leeds’
2000/1 Champions League campaign He was capped six
times for his native Scotland and also played in the Premier
League for Liverpool, Blackburn and Stoke City

Racing

John Reid - Flat

From the expenence of 28 years of race nding and 48
international Group | wins, including the Epsom Derby,
Arc de Tnomphe, St Leger and King George VI Stakes
(twice) comes great insight into the sport of kings

Mick Fitzgerald - National Hunt

Credibility as a National Hunt jockey 1s earned in

the toughest races, and winning the Grand National,
the Cheltenham Gold Cup and twice being crowned
the leading jockey at the Cheltenham Festival ticks
all the boxes




|_ocation:

SUUTH
AFRICA

We launched into South Africa
in January 2009, having gained
a sports betting licence.

----------------------------------------------------------------

Percentage increase in net gaming revenue
for the year 2009/2010

tham  112%

Amounts wagered Percentage increase
on 276,586 bets. in number of active
customers
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Sportingbet has maintained 1ts encouraging
progress of recent years and | am pleased that
the financial results of the last twelve months
have once again demonstrated the strength
of the business Despite difficult economic
conditions in some of our main markets, the
geographic diversity of our customers and
the underlying growth in the online gaming
industry — and particularly in sports betting -
continue to dnive our revenues

Qur strategy I1s to provide a first-class sports betting
product, offering customers an unprecedented number of
betting opportunities at all times of the day Sports betting
1s our focus as it offers the greatest scope to differentiate
our praduct from competitors and has significant barners
to new entrants Our best-in-class trading technology 15
fully owned and continuously developed and updated
internally We supplement the sports offer with a
comprehensive suite of casino, games and poker products
The Group operates across a wide range of countries with
each offer tallored to address the local customer, with
country specific branding employed where appropriate

Regulation continues to be a significant 1ssue for the
industry both as a nsk and an opportunity The industry is
still relatively new and Governments are only Just coming
to gnips with their understanding of it As such, regulation
remains an unknown in both its future incidence and
impact Its hkely that this state of affairs will prevail for
some years Where it can, Spartingbet seeks to engage
with the relevant authorities to both educate and influence
On the whole we welcome the move towards regulation
as we recognise the need for the consumer protection
that a regulated market can bnng However, for regulation
to be successful there 15 a fine balance to be achieved
between the goals of the customers, operators and the
authonties For our part we would like to see a system of
taxation based on gross win, which we believe encourages
competition, consumer choice and maximises tax returns
As long as a market 1s economically viable, wherever a
stable regulated environment exists together with an
equitable tax system and where the rules are enforced,

we will apply for a licence

1

Sports betting
IS our focus

as i1t offers the
greatest scope
to differentiate
our product from

competitors. ,’

CHAIRMAN & NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

Peter
Dicks

Ry Y R R R )




Although 1t 1s iImpaossible to fully mitigate the nsk of a
restrictive regulatory environment, the Group's strategy
of operating across a broad geographical base provides
a degree of protection against the introduction of
legislation in a single country

On 19 September 2010, after the financial year end,
Sportingbet Plc signed a Non-Prosecution Agreement with
the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern Distnict
of New York acting on behalf of the US Department of
Justice This confirmed that the Company would not be
prosecuted for its activittes in the US prior to the passing
of the Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act on

13 October 2006 Sportingbet plc has agreed to pay $33m
over an 18 month period to the US government as part

of the settlement reached This Is an important miestone
for the Group as the Agreement removes any uncertainty
caused by Its previous activities In the US We are now well
placed to use our shares in potential transactions, we have
increased access to caprtal markets and have removed any
perceved contingent habilities

The move from AIM te the Official List and the trading
of our shares on the main market of the London Stack
Exchange was completed in May 2010 The move s a
further sign of the Group’s development and reflects it's
size and maturity The higher profile and greater hquidity
resulting from of the Listing and the recent inclusion i
the FTSE 250, will benefit the Group’s stakeholders over
the coming years

We believe In supporting the industnes from which
we make our living and being part of the wider sports
community Financially we provide support through

sponsarships, endorsements and by direct payments

to communities where appropriate We are the only
online gaming operator to have voluntanly paid the UK
horse racing levy as if our trading operations were based
onshore We are also the main supporter of HEROS, the
UK charnty dedicated to the welfare of retired racehorses
In addition we have put money back into sport through
sponsoring ar entenng into betting partnerships with
varous sporting entities These include horse racing in the
UK and Australia, football cubs such as Wolverhampton
Wanderers, Tottenham Hotspur and Leeds United, rugby
league teams such as Brisbane Broncos and Hull KR, cricket
through English Test Match Grounds, European basketball
through the sponsorship of Euroleague, and Australian
Rules Football through Carlton

Finally, | am pleased to announce that the Board has
proposed a final dvidend of 1 0p (2009 1 Op) The 50%
increase in the total dvidend for the year reflects the
considerable progress the Group has made over recent
years This brings the total dvidend for the year to 1 5p
{2009 1 Op) The dividend will be payable on 11 January
2011 to ordinary shareholders registered as of the close
of business on 17 Decemnber 2010
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Sportingbet

has produced
another strong
financial
performance. ,,

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Andrew
Mclver
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Sportingbet Group

This has been a year of significant progress on a number
of fronts Sportingbet has produced another strong financial
performance and its evolution has continued with the move
from AIM to the Official List and subsequent entry to the
FTSE 250 index Once agan a year of continued top line
growth refiects our on-gaing investment in both our best in
class sportsbook and our comprehensive in play offering
The settlement with the US Department of Justice draws

a line under any 1ssue relating to our historical US activities

The new financial year has started well with net gaming
revenue for the first two months up 17% on the same
period last year Whilst the economic outlook remains
challenging, our spread of activities across the different
economic cycles of Europe, Australia and South America
gives us confidence for a year of further success

Sportingbet Is a significant player in the online gaming
industry with divisions focused on Europe (which includes
Emerging Markets in Africa and South America) and
Australla The European operation i1s based in the Channel
Islands, operating under a icence provided by the Alderney
Gambling Control Commussion Thus s supported by an
operational centre In Dublin providing customer services
and administrative support

The Group’s Australian division 1s based in Darwin operating
under a licence prowided by the Northern Terntory Government
In tota} the Group now employs over 550 people

Betting on sports Is at the heart of the Sportingbet
business, accounting for 69% (2009 64%}) of Group gross
gaming revenue The revenue growth in sporis betting of
35% has pnmanly been driven by bets placed whilst the
garne I1s "in play’, which accounts for 61% of European
amounts wagered The in play product has been growing
strongly at 44%pa over the last three years as more




games and more betting opportunities per game are made
avallable The 64% increase in in play games available

on the site over the last year has been driven through
additional nvestment in new technologtes, which allow
us to cover games remotely We have also increased the
number of betting markets in each game from around

80 at the start of the year, to 150 at the time of the World
Cup The in play product has also benefited from sports
games such as football, tennis and basketball that are
streamed live on our website

Although football 1s our core product accounting for
43% of gross gaming revenue, the Group offers betting
markets on all major global sports Significant Investment
in iImproved betung opportunities has been made in other
sports such as horse racing in Austraha and the UK, which
when combined account for 17% of our sports betting
revenue All the Masters events in Tennis are available to
bet on In play as well as the four tennis majors Basketball
has also been a focus for us as it 1s a core product for most
of the countnes where the Group is the major brand In
particular we have doubled the number of NBA games we
cover In play and Sportingbet is the only online gambling
company to offer live streaming of every Euroleague
Basketball game

While sports betting remains the focus of the business,
we provide a complete range of other gaming products
to our customers including casino, games and poker
Casino and games contribute 21% of total gross
gaming revenue whilst poker makes up the remaining
10% These products are not offered to our Australian
customers due to regulatory constraints

The Group achieved an operating margin of 17 1%
{excluding exceptional items, share option charge and
amortisation of intangible assets) during the year

This was shghtly below the pnor year as additional
investrment was made in products, marketing and IT
Much of this investment has been designed to enable
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the Group to support its continuing push for new
customers and to enhance the customer experience once
people are attracted to our site Increased competition,
customer expectations and the costs of regulatory
compliance will require the Group to continue to Invest
In its operational capabilities

IT 1s at the core of the Group's performance improvermnents
and the additional investment made during the year in people,
software and hardware will enable Sportingbet to keep
developing new products at a fast pace and to support

the continued expansion in turnover and volumes

A major improvement for our custormers was implemented
during the first half of the year with players no longer
required to transfer funds between products or log-in to
each product separately A bet-by-bel funds transfer system
now operates for casino table games and table level
buy-in for poker, allowing smultaneous play across multiple
products in real-time

Other developments have seen a significant increase In

the number of instant games, additional customer deposit
methaods, a renewal of the hardware estate, an increase in
the disaster recovery functionality and a significant upgrade
In our underlying operating software speeding up the
updating of prices and bet settlement

The ability of our business to adjust to the changing
regulatory environment wilt be key to the continued
successful development of the Group Additional
investment 1s being made in our systems to increase
flexibility and to adapt to the common regulatory
themes that are appearing across Europe

In hine with much of the betting industry, the Group enjoyed
a strong performance during the FIFA World Cup, aided
by favourable margins as a result of a number of fixtures
going against the favountes and a significant number of
low scoring garmes Over £50m was staked on World Cup
markets of which 65% was bet in play at an aggregate
margin In excess of 17% Particularly pleasing was the

11 7% margin achieved from the in play product

The Group has continued to expand into new international
markets to provide future growth opportunities for the
Group and to diversify the economic and regulatory risk
Sportingbet launched in Chile towards the end of the
financial year under our Spanish Miapuesta brand

The South African and Romanian businesses established
last year have made promising starts and are expected

to continue their progress into 2011
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Europe

The European business (incorporating the financial results
for the Emerging Markets Division) continues to grow
strongly with the gross amount wagered (pre bonus
adjustment) on sports increasing by 28% to £1,174 Sm
(2009 £917 Sm), generating a gross gaming revenue of
£121 4m (2009 £93 6m) up 30% European casino and
games gross revenue grew by 10% to £48 2m (2009
£43 7m} whilst poker gross revenue decreased marginally
by 1 4% to £21 7m (2009 £22 Om) in tough market
conditions

Regional growth in NGR has been impacted by differing
economic conditions and also by variances in sports margin
by country In particular, the Group’s Greek business has
demonstrated a resthent performance given it's economically
troubled times with NGR growth (pre bonus adjustments)
of 15% Spain, another of the Group’s major markets, was
up 7% and 11% on sports wagers and NGR respectively

The number of sports bets placed rose by 32% to 75 7m
(2009 57 5m) The number of bets per customer increased
to 159 (2009 134) Although the average bet size was
down marginally to £15 51 (2009 £15 97), yield per sports
customer increased from £218 to £254

Once again the European business produced an industry
leading sports margin of 10 3% (2009 10 2%) This
exceptional sportsbook performance ss derived from our
best-in-class trading function, which has been built up
over a number of years of investment in the quality of
our trading team and in our IT systems This facus on
accurate odds setting and the management of nisk remain
core to the Group's success In sports betting The Group's
sportsbook systems are all proprietary and the level of
investment incurred since the business was founded in
1998 present a significant barrier to entry for potential
competitors

In play betting in our European business accounted for
61% of the value of bets placed duning the year
Amounts wagered on live betting increased 42% year
on year generating total NGR of £66 9m and equating
to a gross margin of 9 3%

Dunng 2010 the Group invested further in the development
of its mobile betting platform with a new sportsbook
platform deployed in the UK Thss 1s currently being rolled
out across all the countnies in which we operate

Also during the year the Company invested 1n a number
of addrtional instant casino and games products The total
number available 1s now over 200 and covers the most
popular categories such as Roulette, Blackjack and Slots
As these have been rolled out across our major territories
they have proved popular with customers and have driven
revenue growth of 10 3% over the year Duning the last
quarter of the finanaal year a new series of live casino
games was launched with promising resutts

Poker continues to suffer as part of a global trend where
huge hquidity advantages are realised by some of our
competitors who are prepared to accept US resident
players Durning the year, the Group generated poker rake
{pre bonus deductions) of £21 7m (2009 £22 Om), down
marginally (1 4%} on the prior year We believe this s a
relatively good performance and was down to several
factors localising the poker praduct, improving our Paradise
poker tour and working with the IPN network to improve
the acquisition and retention of players

Following the passing of French regulation in May 2010
the Group withdrew from the market whilst it considered
the on going viability of that market in light of the resulting
tax regime and the Group's low market share, together
with the opportunity cost of the IT work required to obtain
a license It remains the intention to apply for a icence
when the Group considers conditions in the market make
it economically viable to deliver an adequate return In the
year ended July 2009 the NGR denved from the French
market was less than 4% of the Group's total revenue

Norway implemented legistation during 2010, which
established that processing payments for uniicensed
gambling was an accessory offence for financial service
providers As the Group considered that this law had been
correctly enacted through the European Union and the
European Free Trade Association’s legal process, and as the
Group 1s an EU based operation, we have ceased taking
business from Norweglan citizens In the year ended July
20089 the NGR denived from the Norwegian market was
less than 1% of the Group's total revenue




Austraha

Gross amounts wagered n Australia increased by 22%
from £612 1m to £745 3m resulting in pre-tax margin
of £45 5m (2009 £29 1m) Gambling taxes in Australia
amounted to £10 Sm in the period (2009 £6 7m) After
accounting for these taxes, the post tax margin increased
by 56% from £22 4m to £35 0m After bonuses, NGR
tncreased by 62% {27% at constant currency) from

£20 8mto £33 6m

The sports margin in Austraha was well above the long
term average In the year at 4 7% (2009 3 7%} as certain
horse racing results favoured the bookmaker The telephone
business accounted for 63% of the amounts wagered

and 52% of the gross margin Actwve telephone customer
numbers increased 11% and the amount wagered on the
telephone increased by 16% to £468 7m with number

of bets placed increasing by 8%

The relaxation of Australian advertising regulation in
September 2008 has benefited the internet based business
with active customer numbers up 11% and the amount
wagered up 32% to £271 9m Heavy investment in offline
marketing has generated strong brand exposure across a
vanety of media and supported the business against
strong competition

During the year the internet offering was bolstered with
the launch of a new website In addition our first Australian
mobile platform was launched, which proved successful
showing an average growth rate of 10% month on month

The Australian business has seen a significant change to
its cost structure following the relaxation of advertising rules
and the introduction of state level gambling taxes

The busingss 1s now incurnng around $20m in extra tax and
advertising costs compared to 2008 However, profitability
has now returned to 2008 levels as internet driven revenue
has increased by 97% over the same period This is a
conseguence of being given the freedom to advertise and
compete with Incumbent companies and the ongoing
market shift to the internet

The number of bets placed on our internet site rose by
18% over the prior year The number of bets per internet
custormer increased by 6% to A$326 this year The average
bet size on the internet was A$28 (2009 A330)

Qutlook

Overall the new financal year has commenced in hne with
expectations with NGR in the first two months 17% above
the same peniod last year The trends seen duning the last
twelve months have continued with the sportshook growing
strongly, whiist casino and games and poker are weak due
to competitive and economic pressures

Whilst the economic cutlook remains challenging, our
spread of activities across the different economic cycles of
Europe, Australia and South Amenca gives us confidence
for a further year of success
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SPAIN

Spain is one of our largest
markets, accounting for

15% of net gaming revenue.
La Liga 1s potentially a bigger
betting market than the
Premier League.

t225m 18%

----------------------------------------------------------

Sports wagers placed Percentage growth
In sports 1n 2009/10

Over 40,000 new
signed up customers
in 2009/10.
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Board of Directors

BRIAN HARRIS

Non-Executive Director
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Brian Harns, aged 64, joined
Sportingbet as a Non-Executive
Director in January 2003 The founder
and senior partner of a London law
firm with an international clientele,
he acts for foreign governments,
multi-national corporations, national
arlines, and high net worth indwviduals
and privately owned companies He

is actively involved in sporting chanty
work for the disabled

JIM WILKINSON

Group Finance Director

Jim Wilkinson, aged 44, joined
Sportingbet Plc as Group Finance
Director in February 2008, prior to
which he held the same positions at
Johnson Services Group plc (2004-
2007) and Informa Group Plc (1998
- 2004} hm qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Touche Ross London

ANDREW McIVER

Group Chief Executive
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Andrew Mclver, aged 47, formerly
Group Finance Director, took over

as Group Chief Executive in October
2006 Andrew gualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Arthur Andersen
Following two years in the Corporate
Finance department at Dresdner
Kleinwort Wasserstein, he held senior
finance positions at Signet Group

Plc, Ladbrokes Group Plc and Briish
Telecom's Internet division He was
Director of Finance with House of
Fraser Plc for four years before joining
Sportingbet 1n December 2001




PETER DICKS

Chairman & Non-Executive
Director

T R Y N T

Peter Dicks, aged 68, joined the Board
of Sportingbet as Chairman in January
2000 He resigned in September 2006
and rejoined in February 2008 as a
result of US related matters Peter was
co-founder of Abingworth Plc, and 1s
currently a director of a number of
quoted and unquoted companies
including Graphite Enterprise Trust
PLC, Polar Capital Technolegy Trust,
Private Equity Investor, Mears Group
and Standard Microsystems a US
NASDAQ quoted company Peter

s also a director of Daniel Stewart
and Company

SEAN 0°CONNOR

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Sean O'Connor, aged 61, joined
Sportingbet as Non-Executive Director
in 2000 He is the Charrman of Cape
PLC and Springboard Urban and was
acting Charrman of Sportingbet Plc
from September 2006 to February
2008 He was previously Chairman
of the Stoves Group PLC and of
MediaKey Plc and is currently a
Director of several public and private
compantes including the Graphite
Enterprise Trust PLC and Crow TV

NIGEL PAYNE

Non-Executive Director

----------------------------------------

Nigel Payne, aged 50, joined
Sportingbet in 2000 and 1s now a
Non-Executive Director He was
appointed Group Chief Executive
between 2001 and 2006 Nigel was
the Group Finance Director of Polestar
Magazines and held directorships at
Scattish & Newcastle and Brann Direct
Marketing Nigel 1s a Partner in Merlin
Financial Adwisors LLP and ts a director
of Mucky Pups Childcare Limited,
Bettor Logic Limited, Golfbidder
Limited and Hangar8 plc Nigel is

a qualfied Chartered Accountant
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Financial Review

Trading summary

Amounts wagered for the year ended 31 July 2010 were £1,971 3m
(2009 £1,577 2m), resulting in net gaming revenue ("NGR") up 27%
{22% at constant currency) to £207 5 (2009 £163 6m)

Amounts wagered on sports betting 1n Europe (incarporating the
financial results for the Emerging Markets division) grew by 29%
to £1,165 1m (2009 £906 6m), earning NGR of £111 6m (2009
£82 7m) Casino and gaming contnbuted a further £44 9m, and
poker £17 4m, to both amounts wagered and NGR (2009 £41 3m
and £18 8m) Amounts wagered on Australian sports betting grew
by 22% to £743 9m (2009 £610 5m), earning NGR of £33 6m
(2009 £20 8m}

As a percentage of amounts wagered, the European and Australian
sports NGR were 9 6% and 4 5% respectively (2009 9 1% and 3 4%)
However, amounts wagered and NGR are stated after a deduction

for customer bonuses of £18 8m (2009 £18 1m) Without the bonus
deduction the equivalent numbers would have been 10 3% and 4 7%
(2009 102% and 3 7%)

Costs (excduding exceptional tems, share option charge and
amortisation) in the year were £172 1m (2009 £132 5m),
accounting for 82 9% of NGR (2009 81 0%)

There has been 2 net charge to the operating profit of £1 9m (2009
credit of £1 Om) anising from foreign exchange The Group earns over
95% of its revenue In currencies other than sterling

Operating profit {before exceptional items, share option charge and
amortisation) for the year was £35 4m (2009 £31 1m)

Earnings before interest, tax, deprecation and amortisanon {before
exceptional items and share option charge) were up 17% to £46 S5m
(2009 £39 7m)

Exceptional costs associated with the agreed settlement with the
United States Department of Justice and the Group’s move to the
Official List of the UK Lisaing Authounty totalled £24 5m (2009 £ol)

Operating profit after the share option charge of £2 Om (2009
£3 1m), amortisation of other intangible assets of £1 8m (2009
£1 9m) and excepticnal costs of £24 5m (2009 £4 2m) was
£7 1m {2009 £21 9m}

Finance income

Finance income comprised interest recevable of £0 4m (2009 £0 7m)
and interest payable on bank loans of £0 5m (2009 £0 3m}and £0 1m
on finance lease interest (2009 £mil)

Eamings per share

Adjusted basic earmings per share before exceptional tems, share
option charge and amortisation was 6 5p (2009 6 5p) Diluted
earmings per share before exceptional items, share option charge
and amortisation was 6 2p (2009 6 Op)

Cash flow
Buning the year ended 31 July 2010, the Group generated cash
from operating actwities of £43 8m (2009 £17 Om)

As at 31 july 2010, the Group had £58 9m (2009 £44 3m) of cash
and hguid resources on its balance sheet After taking into account
£18 2m (2009 £16 5m) of customer labilities, £4 Om {2009 £4 Om)
of bank loans secured on residential propertses in the Channel Islands
and finance leases of £2 5m (2009 £nil}, net cash at the penod end
stood at £34 2m (2009 £23 8m)

Treasury management

The Group’s treasury function provides a centralised service for the
provision of finance and the management and control of iquidity,
foreign exchange and interest rates The function operates as a cost
centre and manages the Group's treasury exposure to reduce risk in
accordance with policies approved by the Board

It 1s not the policy of the Group to trade 1n or enter into speculative
transactrons Authoritres, procedures and reporting responsibifities are
documented and regularly reviewed

Due to the international nature of its core activities, the Group's
reported profits, net assets and cash flows are all affected by foreign
exchange rate movements

QOperations are fimanced by 2 mixture of retained profits, bank
borrowngs and long-term loans In addition, vanous financial
instruments, such as trade receivables and trade payables, anse
directly from the Group's operations

Certain custorners in the Australian region are allowed to place

bets on credit The Group's policy m respect of credit nisk 15 to require
appropnate credit checks are made on potential customers before
bets are placed and credit hmits set accordingly

The Group continued to use forward currency contracts to manage
foreign currency nsks




Managing Risk

The risks below are those which the Directors consider matenal They are
not presented in any order of pnonty Addtional nsks and uncertainties,
not currently known to the Directars or that the Directors currently
consider mmatenal, may also adversely affect the Group’s business,
results of operations or financial condiuon

Existing or potential laws and regulations in junsdictions
from which the Group accepts bets or wagers

The Group 1s subject to vanous laws and regulations tn a number of
junsdictions Most countries regulate or, n some cases prohibit, gaming
activities Histoncally, the regulation of the gaming industry has been
arranged at a natonal level and, currently, there IS no international
gaming regulatory regme The Group seeks to comply with and
monitors the relevant laws and regulations of the junsdictions in which

its operations are established However the Group 15 exposed to the

nsk that junsdictions from which it accepts wagers, or from which its
adverisements may be accessed wia the internet may have conflicing
laws and requlations (or Interpretations of such laws and regulations) with
regard 1o the legality or appropnate regulatory compliance of the Group's
activities In addriion the Junsdhciions may witroduce or amend existing
laws or regulations seeking to prohibit or regulate gaming actvities

The Group analyses junsdictional nisk and, based on the relevant
wunsdicthon undertakes procedures in order to mitigate such nisk

In addition the Group limits its regulatory nsk from any one country
by accepting wagers from a large number of junsdictions, none of
which represent more than 20% of the Group’s net gaming revenue

Dependence on requlatory licences

There can be no assurance that any jurisdiction 1 which licences

are held by or on behalf of the Group will not change its licensing
requirements, indluding the terms and conditions to which the hicences
and approvals currently held by or on behalf of the Group are subject
If the regutatory scheme of any junschction in which the Group
operates were to change its licensing requirements, the Group may
be required 1o expend significant caprtal or other resources in order
1o comply with the new reguirements and/or may not be able to meet
the new requirements, either or a combination of which could have
amatenal adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition
and results of operations

The Group has diversified its regulatory nsk by obtaining multiple
licenses Betting activities are licensed in Alderney, Antigua and
Barbuda, Austraka, Narthern Cyprus, South Africa and the UK

The Directors believe the Group has a good relationship with the
relevant regulatory authorties but there can be no guarantee that
these licences will be renewed or that they will not be terminated early

Competrtion

The online betung market 1s highly competitive The Graup competes
with a number of companies, some of which have greater financial,
marketing and other resources than the Group These companies may
adopt more aggrassive pricing pelicies or undertake more extensive
marketing and advertising campaigns This may have a negative impact
on revenues or profit margins achieved by the Group in the future The
Group would face an increase in compettion If competitors expanded
or focused more on online sports betting or 1t there were new entrants
in the market

The Group closely monitors cornpetition within the online gambling
industry and has a long term approach to improving sts products,
marketing and IT infrastructure In addstion the Group has a diversified
geographical base which spreads the competitive nsk

Brand rehance

The Group’s success depends on a strong brand and if the Group

15 not able to maintain and enhance its brand, its ability to expand

its base of customers, advertisers and affiiates wall be impaired

and s business and operating results wilk be harmed The Directors
anticipate that, as the Group’s market becomes increasingly competitive,
maintaining and enhancing the Group's brand may become
increasingly difficult

The Directors believe that the brand 1dentity that the Group has
developed has significantly contributed to the success of s business
The Group spends mare than 30% of net gaming revenue on marketing
and reviews and monitars the success of all marketing and sponsorship
expenditure The Group intends to continue to acguire domarn names
as suitable opportunities arise

Dependence on a number of third parties for the

operation of its business

The Group has refationships with a number of key third party suppliers
who provide products and services to the Group infrastructure
suppliers, network and telecommunication suppliers and application
service growders are long-term partners in providing an infrastructure
which seeks 1o ensure the delivery of sophisticated, high performance
transaction processing systems However, the Group exeroses hittle control
over many of these third party suppliers and s reliant on them to perform
their senvices In accordance with the terms of therr contracts, which
increases its vulnerability to problems wath the products and services they
provide Any adverse event affecting the Group’s relationship with them
could have a material adverse effect on the Group's reputation, business,
finanoial condian and results of operadons

The Group 1s Increasing the number of third party suppliers to reduce
to the dependency on the current suppliers and 1s performing a number
of functions internally previously undertaken by third parties

The Group 1s highly dependent on technology and
advanced information systems

The Group's operations are highly dependent on technology and
advanced information systems and there 1s a nsk that such technology
or systems could fail In addition to such failure, there can be no
assurance that such technology or systermns will not be subject to damage
or interruption caused by human error, unauthonsed access, computer
viruses distnbuted derval of service (DDoS) attacks, increase n volume
In usage of online services, sabotage natural hazards or disasters or
other similarly disruptive events including other security breaches, or
will be able to support a sigrficant increase in online traffic or increased
customer numbers Any fallure or disruption of, or damage to, the
Group's technology or systerns, could have a matenal adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial condition or results of operations

The Group has in place data recovery and systems recovery procedures
security measures and business contmuity plans in the event of fallure
or disruption of, or damage to, the Group's technology or systems
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Corporate Governance Statement

Comphance

The Company recognises the importance of the principles of good
corporate governance and the Board 1s pleased to report its contmnued
commitment to achieving high standards throughout the year

The Board complies with the provisions of the Combined Cade on
Corporate Governance 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Counail

(" Code*} other than as set out below and in the secticn headed
®Audit Commuttee”

The Board is accountable to the Company’s shareholders for good
governance and the statement set out below describes how the
principles identified in the Code are appled by the Group

The Board constitution and procedures

The Company is contralled through the Board of Directors which,

at the end of the finangial year, compnsed two Executive and four
Non-Executive Directors  All Nen-Exacutive Directors {other than Nigel
Payne) are considered by the Board to be independent of management
and free of any relatonship which could matenally interfere with the
exergse of therr independent judgement Given Nigel Payne’s previous
position as an Executive Director he 15 not considered to be independent
as defined by the Cade However, the Board continues to believe that
his expenience, objectvity and in particular, Insight into the regulatory
environment in which the Campany operates, combine to provide a
valuable contribution to the strategic direction of the Company

Durng the year, there were no changes to the constitution of the Board

The Chairman 15 primarily responsible for the running of the Board,
and ensures that all Directors receive sufficient relevant information on
finanaal, business and corporate issues prior to meetings The Group
Chief Executive's responsibilities focus on coordinating the Company's
business and implementing Group strategy

A formal schedule of matters 1s reserved for consideration by

the Board, which met eleven times during the year The Board 1s
responsible for overall Group strategy acgquisiion and investment
policy, approval of major capital expenditure projects and consideration
of signrficant financing matters It reviews the strategic direction of
individual trading subsidianes, therr codes of conduct, therr annual
budgets, their progress towards achievement of these budgets and
their caprtal expenditure programmes In addition, the Directors have
access to the adwice and services of the Company Secretary and all
Directors are able to take iIndependent professional adwice In the
furtherance of ther duties if necessary

Alt new Directors receive a full, formal and tallored induction on
joining the Board as well as training and advice on ther responsibihties
as necessary All Directors, in accordance with the Code, submit
thernselves for re-election at least once every three years and new
Directors are subject to a transparent and ngorous appointment
process {Including submitting themselves for re-election at the first
annual general meeting after therr appointment}

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuning Board processes
and procedures are appropnately followed and support effective
governance and decision making

Board committees

The Board delegates clearly defined powers to rts Audit Remuneration
and Nominatien Committees whilst the Company’s Social Responsibthty
Commuttee ("SRC*), as reported on page 23, 1s responsible for reviewing
the Company's policies on corporate socal responsibility and making
appropnate recommendations to the Board The minutes of each
committee are arculated to and reviewed by the Board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee s chared by Nigel Fayne (who has recent and
relevant financial experience for this role, as indicated on page 43)
Hts other members are Peter Dicks, and Sean O’Connor

The Company believes that a membership of three reflects the size

of the business (as defined by the Code) going farward Furthermore,
the Company recogrises that 1t does not comply with prowvision C 3 1
in that not all the members of the Committee are Independent Non-
Executive Directors (a3 defined by the Code, and as explained above)
The Board considers that in order to ensure the effective working of
the Committee it was appropriate to appoint Nigel Payne as Chairman
and Peter Dicks as a member of the Committee, and I1s confident of
their experience to ensure the Committee’s affairs are conducted in
an impartial and objective manner The Committee's Secretary s
Daniel Talisman, the Company Secratary

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year (and met twice
during the last financial year) and normally invites a representative of
both the auditors and the Executive Direciors to attend its meetings,
the latter usually being the Group Finance Director At the end of
each meeting the auditors are invited to meet with the Committee
with no Executive or staff members present The Terms of Reference
of the Commuttee include monitonng the integnty of the Financial
Statements, monitonng the internal and external audit function and
reviewang accounting policies, financial controls and financial reporting
procedures The Commuttee alsa has responsibility for revewing the
effectiveness of the Group s internal control and nsk management
systems, described in more detail later in this section Duning the year,
the Commuttee received presentations from senior management on
the key nisks and control 1ssues in therr respective business areas and
reviewed risk miigation plans for critical nsks Terms of Reference for
the Commuttee can be viewed on the Company's website and are
available in writing on reguest




Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee is chaired by Peter Dicks Bnan Harns

and Sean O'Connor are its other members The Commitiee’s Secretary
15 Daniel Talisman, the Company Secretary The Remuneration
Committee meets when necessary duning the year (and met nine times
duning the last financial year) and considers the terms of employment
and overall remuneration for the Executive Directors, including pension
nghts and any compensatton payments Further, the Committee
makes decisions regarding grants or awards under share plans, salaries
and incentive compensation The Executive Directors appraise the
Remuneratron Committee on the level and structure of remuneration
set for sermor management Terms of Reference for the Committee

can be viewed on the Company’s website and are available in writing
on request

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 15 determined by the
Executive Directors

Nomination Committee

The Normination Committee 1s chared by Sean O'Connor and s other
members are Peter Dicks, Nigel Payne and 8nan Harns The Commuttee’s
Secretary 15 Daniel Talisman the Company Secretary The Committee
sits farmally at least twice a year (and met twice during the last financial
year) The Terms of Reference for the Committee {including the terms
and condrtions of appaintment of directors) can be viewed on the
Company’s website and are available tn writing on request

The Commuttee 1s responsible for monitonng and formally reviewing
the performance, compositron, balance and expertise of the Board

as a whole and making an appratsal of the contnbution of indmdual
Directors, including a review of therr ime commitment and attendance
records The Committee also considers succession planming for the
Board and Group sermior management When necessary the Committee
prepares a descniption of the role to be filled and engages external
consuitants o administer a detailed search and the generation of a
shortlist Any recommendations for appointments or replacements

are brought before the Board

Evaluation

The Board continued its ongoing evaluation processes of itself and

1ts commuttees to assess thetr performance and identify areas in which
therr effectiveness, policies and processes might be enhanced As part
of this process the Board contnues to comply wth the Institute of
Chartered Secretartes and Admirustrators’ Code of Good Boardroom
Practice The performance of indvidual Directors has been considered
hy the Chairman and Group Chief Executive in discussion with other
Non-Executive Directors The Non-Executive Directors considered the
performance of the Chairman, taking into account the views of the
Executive Directors

Commumication with investors

The Group places considerable importance on communication
with its institutional and private shareholders and respands quickly
to all queries received There 1s regular dialogue wath institutional
shareholders as well as general presentations after each quarter
end and the issue of preliminary results

All shareholders have at least 20 working days’ notice of the Annual
General Meeting at which all Directors are introduced and available for
questions The Execttive Directors endeavour to meet the Company’s
larger institutional shareholders at the time of the Companys quarterly
results announcements and the Senior Independent Director, Sean
O"Connor, 15 available to shareholders throughout the year

Accountahility and audrt

(a) Internal control

The Group has complied with provision C 2 1 of the Code and the
Turnbull Guidance for the year ended 31 July 2010 and up to the date
of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts The Board has ensured
that there has been an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the sigrificant risks faced by the Group This process has
been regularly reviewed by the Board

Whilst acknow!edging the overall respensibility for the system of
internal contral and for reviewing its effectiveness, the Board 1s aware
that the system 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only prowide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance agamst matenal misstaternent or loss

The Group’s internal control procedures continue to be reviewed,
progressively developed and formalised to ensure that they sufficiently
meet the requirements of the Group Executive members of the

Board are involved dally in all aspects of the business and they attend
regular management meetings at which performance agamst plan
and business prospects are reviewed Additionally, the Board seeks

to continually strengthen the internal control system where this is
consistent with improving the relationship between nisk and reward

Other key features and the processes for reviewing effectiveness of
the internal control system that the Committee has apphed dunng
the current finanaal year are descnibed as follows

+ Monthly management information, including finanoal accounts
and key performance indicators, have been defined and are
produced on a tmely basis for review by the Board

* A detaled formal budgeting process for all Group businesses
culrminates in an annual budget which 1s revewed and approved
by the Board Results for the Group and for 1ts main constituent
bustnesses are reported monthly agatnst the budget to the Board
and rewvised forecasts for the finangial year are considered each
quarter

+ A comprehensive finanazl and accounting package sets out the
principles of the minimum standards required by the Board for
effective financial control This package sets out the finanaial and
accounting policies and procedures to be applied throughout the
Group Comphance wath the policies and procedures set out In
this package 1s reviewed regularly Formal reports for the Board
are prepared by the serior executives on the operation of those
elements of the system for which they are responsible

» The Company has clearly defined guidance for capital expenditure
These indlude annual budgets, detalled appraisal and review
pracedures, levels of authonty and strningent due diligence
requirements where businesses are being acquired
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{b) External audnt

The Audit Committee meets penodically to review the adequacy of

the Group’s internal control systems, accounting policies and compliance
with applicable accounting standards and to consider the appointment
of external auditors and audit fees The Group’s auditors are inwited to
attend 1ts meetings The Audit Commuttee 15 authonsed by the Board
10 investigate any actmvity within its terms of reference and obtain
outside legal or other independent professtonal adwice as necessary
The auditors and indivdual Board members are afforded the opporiunity
for separate meetings with the Audit Commuittee The Audit Commitiee
consists wholly of Non-Executive Directors

The award of non-audit work to the auditors is subject to pre-dearance
by the Audit Committee If the fee exceeds speafied thresholds

As a matter of best practice and in accordance with the International
Standard on Auditing 260, the auditors have held discussians with
the Audit Commuttee on the subject of auditor independence and
have confirmed their independence in wnting

Possible Number Meetings

Meetings Attended
" e

Peter Dicks Board 1 10

Audrt 2 2

Remuneration 9 9

Nomination 2 2

Brian Harns Board 11 11

Remuneration 9 g

Nomination 2 2

Andrew Mclver Board 1 11

Sean O'Connor Board 11 10

Audit 2 2

Remuneration g 9

Nomination 2 2

Nigel Payne Board 11 1

Audit 2 2

Nomination 2 2

Jim Wilkinson Board 1 il




Directors’ Report

The Directors submut therr Annual Report and audited Finangial
Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2010

Prindipal activities

The pnncipal actvties of the Group are the operatian of interactive
licensed betting and gaming operations over the internet In Australia
only, interactive betting 1s conducted over the internet and telephone

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out on page 61 and
show a profit after taxation for the year of £3 9m (2009 £12 4m)
The Directors recommend payment of a final dwdend of 1 1p per
ordinary share (2009 1 Op)

Review of the business and future developments

For a faw revew of the Group's business duning the year, a descrniption
of the nsks and uncertainties it faces and the position of the Group at
the end of the year, see the following

Key finanaal highlights 02-03

Corporate scual responsitility 22-25

Group Chief Executive review 36-39

Financial review 44

Managing risks 45

Corparate governance statement 46-48

Directors

P Dicks Chatrman and Non-Executive
A Mclver Executive
J Wilkinson Executive
N Payne Non-Executive
$ O'Connor Senior Independent Non-Executive
B Harris Non-Executive

The followang Directors have held office duning the year and subsequently
Sean O Connor and Nigel Payne will retire by rotation at this year's
Annual General Meeting and will each seek re-election, being eligible

The interests of the Birectors in the shares of the Company and options
for such shares were as shown on pages 52 to 56 both reflecting

the year end figures and any subsequent changes No Director has

any interest in any other Group company Details of the Directors’
remuneration and semce contracts appear on pages 52 to 56

Auditor

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, 1s willing to conunue in office

and a resalution to re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
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Related party transactions
Details of transactions wath related parties undertaken by the Group
during the year are disclosed in note 24 to the Finanaal Statements

Charitable donations

Duning the year, the Group donated £229,565 to a number of
chanties This figure indludes donations to The GREaT Foundation,
formerly known as the Responsibility in Gambling Trust, the island
Academy International School, Antigua, HEROS (Homing Ex-Racehorses
Organisation Scheme) and the Motor Neurone Disease Research
Included in this total was a donation of £13,981 to the Fnends of Israel
Sport Centre for the Disabled, of which BEnan Hamns is the founder
Directors’ indemnity

Details of the Directors” Indemnity insurance can be found in the
Remuneration Report

Purchase of own shares

The Company was granted authority at the Extraordinary General
Meeting tn December 2009 to purchase its own shares up to a fimit
of 10 per cent of its issued ordinary share capital No shares were
purchased during the year under review

Share Capital

The 1ssued share capital of the Company 1s compnsed of ordinary
shares of 0 1p each Each share carnes the nght to one vote per share
on a poll The hability of members of the company 15 imited to the
amount unpaid, if any, on the shares held by them All issued shares
of the Company are fully paid

Changes to the Company’s share capital are set out in note 8 of the
Parent Company Financial Statements At 5 October 2010 the 1ssued
share capital stood at 502,180,424

There are no specfic restrictions on the size of a holding nor on
the transfer of shares No person has any special nghts of controf over
the Company’s share capital and all 1ssued shares are fully pad

Dunng the last year, the Company did not purchase any shares
as treasury shares
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Risk management

A description of the Group’s financial nsk management objectives and
nsk policies and its exposure to pnice credit, hquidity and cashflow nsk,
together with nformation on the use of finanaal instruments by the
Group 1s contained in note 20 and forms part of this report

Policy and practice of payment of suppliers

In respect of the Group's next finanaial year, it 1s the policy of the
Group that each company within the Group should agree appropnate
terms and conditions for 1ts transactions with suppliers by means
ranging from standard written terms to individually negotiated
contracts Payments are to be made in accordance with these terms
and conditions At 31 July 2010 the Company had a trade creditor
balance of £nl (2009 £nil) Group trade payables represented

18 days of purchases (2009 15 days)

Substantial shareholdings

As 3t the opening of dealing on 5 October 2010 the following
Shareholders hold, or control, interests in 3% or more of the
Company’s voting nghts

Number of % voting
Ordinary shares nghts
at0 peach
]}

Bonaire Investment Holdings 44,497,096 886
Fidelity 38,989,092 776
DBS Adwisors Umited 35933,903 716
Legal & General Investment Managemeant 15,115,300 il

Treasury management
The Board has laid out 1ts pelicy on treasury management in the
Financial Review on page 44

Going concern

The Directors have considered the implicausons of the potential impact
of regulatory uncertainties discussed in the Regulatory Developments
on pages 57 to 59 The Directors have revewed the cash flow
projections for the Group in light of these uncertainties and have
considered the finanaal resources avalable to the Group Accordingly,
the Drrectors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to continue operaiions for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financal statements

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 17 December 2010

The Notice of the Meeting begins on page 98 The Notice contains
special business, including the renewal of authonty to the Board 1o allot
shares and the dis-application of statutory pre-emption nights on equity
1ssues for cash — both in accordance with ABI and NAPF Guidelines
Shareholders should complete the Proxy form accompanying this Report
in accordance wath the Notes contained in the Nouice of Meeting

Significant agreements

Chapter 4 of Part 28 of the Companies Act 2006 requires the
Company to wentify those significant arrangements to which the
Company Is party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company following a takeover bid, and the effects
of any such agreements

The Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Internet Opportunity
Entertaimment {Sports) Limited {"IOESL") entered into an agreement
with Boss Media AB In relation to the supply of various services and
software (the "Boss Agreement’) Clause 8 2 of the Boss Agreement
provides that either party may terminate the Boss Agreement upon
six months’ written notice to the other In the event of a change of
ownership and/or contro!, subject to cerian conditions, indluding the
payment of an exit charge

I0ESL and Interactive Sports {C | } Limited {together the “Spaorungbet
Party”) have entered into an agreement wath SEE Sports Limited and
Flyer International S A ("Flyer”) in relation to the provision of online
gaming services In Greece (the "Joint Venture Agreement™) Clause
12 5 of the Joint Venture Agreement provides that if any therd party
or senes of connected third parties acquires the ownership or control
of more than 50 per cent of the beneficial and/or legal shareholding
and/or legal vating nightts of a Sportingbet Party, and the Sportingbet
brand ceases to exist as a separate stand-alone brand or be supported
by such third party, Flyer shall be entitied to terrminate the Joint Venture
Agreement with immediate etfect




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance wath apphicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs),
andhave elected to prepare the Parent Company Financial Staternents
in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Urited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) The financal
statements are required by law to give a true and farr view of the state
of affairs of the Group and the Cormpany and of the profit or loss of
the Group for that penod In prepanng these finanaal statements,

the Directors are required 10

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
* make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

* state whether applicable standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed andg explained in the Financral
Statements

= prepare the finanaal statements on the gaing concern basis
untess 11 1s Inappropnate to presume that the company will continue
I business

The Directors are respensible for keeping adeguate accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial pasiion
of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregulariies

In so far as each of the Directors Is aware

s there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's
auditors are unaware, and

+ the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the audstors are aware of that information

b1

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the company’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legisiation
in ather junsdictons

To the best of my knowledge

+ the finanoal statements, prepared 1n accordance wath the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view
of the assets habilities, finanaial position and profit or loss of the
company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, and

= the management report includes a far review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
a whole, together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertanties that they face

On behalf of the Bfjard

A Mclver
Director

5 October 201

Company registration number 3534726
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Remuneration Report

Information subject to audit
1. Directors’ emoluments

£000
Notes Salaryffees Bonuses  Cash  Share  Benefits Total  Penston Total  Pension
tTIP  cptions emaluments 2010 emoluments 2009
Lwp 2010 2009

e - |
Executive Directors

Andrew Mciver 1,3,9 10 520 375 300 1,912 6 3,113 100 1,478 95
Jim Wilkinson 310 296 210 166 882 1 1,555 45 770 4
Dave Hobday 2,9 - - - - - - - 45 -
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Dicks 3,5,6,7.8 160 - - - - 160 - 160 -
Sean O'Connor 3,4,56,7, 8 130 - - - - 130 - 150 -
Brian Harns 3,4,6,7,8 120 - - - - 120 - 121 -
Nigel Payne 3,578 128 - - . - 128 - 154 -
1,354 585 466 2,794 7 5.206 145 2,878 136

1 Aggregate emoluments for Andrew Mdiver, as highest paid 4 Member of the Social Responsibility Commitiee
Director, excluding pension contributions, amounted to f the A
£3.113.315 (2009 £1,477,820) 5  Member of the Audit Committee
6 Member of the R
2 Dave Hobday resigned as a Director of the Company on 8 May 2008 ember of the Remuneration Committee
7 Member of the Nomination Committee
3 The average total emoluments of the Executive Directors was
£2,333,925 {2009 £1,124,187) The average tatal emoluments 8 Included within Salary/Fees 1s an annual share award valued at
of non-Board employees was £62,650 (2009 £62,028) The ratio £40,000 which forms part of the Non-Executive remuneration
between the two averages was 372 1 (2009 1821) Theaverage g |ndluded above are contributions to an Employee 8enefit Trust
total emoluments of the Executive Directors (excluding share established for the benefit of the Drrectors and certain seror
options) was £936,619 (2009 £699,466) The ratio to non-Board employees

employees was 1501 (2009 113 1)
10 The Long Term Incentwe Plan ("LTIP*) awards relate to the final

payments of a scheme put in place n 2006 followang the Group's
withdrawal from the US




2. Interests of Directors in share options and share plans of the Company

Notes No of No of Date of Exercise Earliest Expiry of
aptrons at options at grant ance ipl EXEFCISE EXEICISE
1 Aug 2009 Ji Jul 2010 date period

- - - -~ ]
Executive Directors

Andrew Mdver 1 500,000 - 21/01/04 49 29/01/07 29/01/14
2 1,647,728 - 30/11/06 - 01/111/07 01/12/09
3 656,251 - 1412/07 - 01/11/08 01/02/10
4 66,667 - 09/05/06 - 01/11/07 01/11/09
5 1,959,566 1,959,566 20/01/09 - 01/11/10 011212
Jim Wilkinson 2z 8§52 204 - 01/02/08 - 01/11/07 M12/09
3 343,751 - 01/02/08 - 01/11/08 01/02/10
5 1,077 760 1,077,760 20/01/09 - 011110 01/1212
Dave Hobday 3 48 798 - 14/12/07 - 01/11/08 01/02/10

Non-Executive Directors

Peter Dicks - - - . . R
Nigel Payne - - - - - -
Sean Q'Connor - - - - . .
Brian Harris - - - - - -

1 Share options granted under the Sportingbet Pic Unapproved 4 Andrew Mclver was granted the right to earn shares which

Executive Share Option Scheme 2004 During the financial year,
Andrew Mclver surrendered his 500,000 options under this
scheme n consideration of receiving an equivalent cash award

Share awards granted under the Sportingbet 2006 Restncted Share
Plan During the financial year, 1,647 728 shares were released to
Andrew Mdver and 852,204 shares were released to Jim Wilkinson

Provisional discretionary share bonuses totalling 3,452,760 shares
were made to Andrew Mclver, Dave Hobday and im Wilkinson
during the 2007/08 finanaial year on the dates as set out above

The awards vest in two equal amounts on 1 November 2008 and

1 November 2009 If all shares are held (subject to a number being
sold to meat any tax hability) an additional 15% bonus in shares

wall be awarded Ounng the financal year, 656,251 shares were
released to Andrew Mdver and 343,751 shares were released to
Jim Wilkinson Dave Hobday's award of 48,798 shares were released
to hirn in November 2009 after meeting certain conditions

would vest in three equal parts in respect of finanaal years 2007,
2008 and 2009, and would be subject to the same performance

condrtions as the Sportingbet 2006 Restricted Share Plan During

the finanaal year, 66,667 shares were released to Andrew Mciver
under this award

Share awards granted under the Sportingbet Restricted Share
Plan 2009 Dunng the finanaal year, no shares were released to
Andrew Mclver and Jim Wilkinson under this award

18 158,451 options were exergised during this financial year (2009
13,789,763) of which 2,999,932 options were exerased by Directors
of the Company (2009 1,966,906) The price paid by partcpants
under the Sportingbet Plc Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme
2004 was 39 Sp and under the Sportingbet 2006 Restricted Share Plan
was £nil The market pnce of shares at 31 July 2010 was 62p and the
range dunng the financial period was 54 00p to 75 25p A summary
of the performance cniteria upon which awards or options may be
exerqised 1s set out below
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Information NOT subject to audit
3. Interests of Directors in shares in the Company

Notes 2010 2009

Executive Directors

Andrew Mclver 1 4,234,481 2,566,736
hm Wilkinson 2 1,517,166 811,551
Non-Executive Directors

Peter Dicks 3 581,308 516,956
Sean O'Connor 4 593,685 525,364
Brian Harnis 5 378,461 314,109
Nigel Payne 6 176,398 176,398

1 Andrew Mdver received an interest in 1,647,727 shares on 26
November 2009, following the release of an award under the
2006 Restricted Share Plan, 675,567 shares were sold to meet the
tax habibty of this award He received an interest in 66,667 shares
on 26 Novernber 2009, followang the release of a share based
performance award, 27,333 shares were sold to meet the tax ability
of this award He receved a cash payment of £95,875 in leu of the
exerase of 500,000 share options at 41 Sp each granted to him
under the terms of the Sportingbet Plc Unapproved Executive Share
Option Scheme 2004 The 500,000 options have been cancelied
He recerved an interest in 656,251 shares on 30 November 2009,
following the release of the second and final part of a discrettonary
share bonus

2 Jhim Wilkinson received an interest in 852,204 shares on 26
November 2009, following the refease on an award under the
2006 Resticted Share Plan, 349,403 shares were sold to meet the
tax hiability of this award He received an interest in 343,751 shares
on 30 November 2009, following the release of the second and
final part of a discretionary share bonus, 140,937 shares were sold
to meet the tax habity of this award

3 Peter Dicks received an interest in 35,663 shares on 4 August 2009
and in 28,689 shares on 1 February 2010 forming part of his Non-
Executive remuneration

4 Sean O’'Connor recerved an interest in 35,663 shares on 4 August
2009 and 1n 28,689 shares on 1 February 2010 forming part of
his Non-Executive remuneration Sean O Connor also recewved an
interest in 2,681 shares on 8 January 2010 and in 1,288 shares an
31 March 2010 pursuant to the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment
Plan (DRIP)

S Bnan Harnis received an interest in 35,663 shares on 4 August
2009 and in 28,685 shares on 1 February 2010 forming part of
his Non-Executive remuneration

6 Nigel Payne received an interest in 35,663 shares on 4 August
2009 and in 28,689 shares on 1 February 2010, forming part of his
Non-Executive remuneration, all of which he subsequently gifted

Remuneration policy

The Company's policy is designed to attract, retain and motivate
indwiduals to ensure the success of the Company Remuneration
packages are designed to reward Directors fairly for their contributions
whilst remaining within the range of benefits offered by similar
compames in the sector

The Remuneration Commuttee 1s chaired by Peter Dicks and its other
members are Brian Harris and Sean O'Connor The Remuneration

Commuttee seeks to structure total benefits packages, including
base salaries, which align the interests of shareholders and senior
management with particular impartance weighted upon the
performance-related elements of such total remuneration

These elements are related to thewr participation in Sportingbet's
Share Plans, each of which only permits the release of an award or
option subject to the Company meeting its perfermance conditions,
details of which are given

The Remuneration Committee aims to seek and retain the appropriate
calibre of people and recommends fee levels to the Board consistent
with prevailing market conditions, peer group companies and
Directors’ roles and responsibilities

Specifically, when considenng adoptien of the Sportingbet Restricted
Share Plan 2009, the Remuneration Committee assessed the needs
of the Company for the penod through to 2012 compared to the
Company's needs when the Sportingbet 2006 Restncted Share

Plan was introduced 1n Novernber 2006 smmediately following the
enactment of the Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act 2006

Directors’ remuneration will continue te be the subject of regular
review In accordance with this policy in the next financial year

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee include

¢ To determine the remuneration and benefits, including incentive
arrangements, of the Executive Directors, the directors of divmsional
companies and other employees of similar status

¢ To set targets for performance-related pay elements of
remuneration packages

* Toreview recommendations from the Board on the overall
remuneration and benefits policy of the Group, wath the power
and authanty 1o amend 1t if approprate

*  To have regard 10 the provisions of the Combined Code and
associated guidance in s decision-making

The Drrectors intend that the Company's remuneration pohcy waill be
sat by the Remuneration Commuttee in accordance with the terms of
reference set out above for the following finanoal year and subsequent
financal years

Service contracts

The Company's pahcy on the duration of Directors’ contracts is that
for both Executive and Non-Executive Directors notice periods will be
no more than one year served by the Company or the Director




Andrew Mclver and Jim Willsnson have Service Contracts, dated 18
January 2006 and 21 January 2008 respectvely which prowide for 12
months' notice by the Company or the Director and contain non-
compete obhgauons There are no payments ar compensation on early
termination of the contract, save that where a payment 1s made in

lieu of notice and the Executive commences new employment dunng
such a period, they are under an obhgation to repay the Company any
pro-rated amounts

Peter Dicks, Bniars Harns and Nigel Payne, each a Non-Executive
Director, each has a contract for services with a termination penod of
12 months’ notice It1s the Company's policy that a proportton of therr
fee Is paid in Sportingbet Shares, which are to be retained until they
cease to be a Director of the Company

in the case of Sean O'Connor, the Company entered into an
agreement wath The Sean O'Connor Consultancy bmited to provide
the senaices of Sean O0'Connor as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company The appointment s subject to removal from office In
accordance with the Company's articles of association

In December 2006, and in the case of im Wilkinsan, on 1 February
2008, Sportingbet Plc granted ralling indemnities to all of 1ts Directors
and the Company Secretary, uncapped tin amount, in relation to certain
losses and iabilties which they may incur in the course of acting as
Directors and Company Secretary of Sportingbet Plc or of one or more
of its subsidianes These indemnities replace those previously granted
on similar terms and conunue to be in place as at 31 July 2010

Bonuses

The Company operates a bonus incentive scheme which apples,

at diffenng rates, to the employment terms of the Executive Directors
and members of senior management Part of any payment under this
scheme 15 linked to the annual performance of the business for which
they are responsible and 1s at the discretion of the Board

The Remuneration Committee reviews the packages and
vanes indwdual elements when appropriate from year to year
The Remuneration Committee has policies and procedures in
place to menitor the size of potential rewards

On 14 December 2007 and 1 February 2008 the Remuneration
Commuttee granted Andrew Mclver and Jim Wilkinson, respectively,
the conditianal nighi to recewve a discretionary bonus in shares in the
Company These shares would vest in two equal amounts aiter the
two financial pericds ending 2008 and 2009, subject to the Company
meeting the same performance conditions as the 2005 and 2006
Share Plans They would also receive an additional 15% of the

award If they retain their shares (subject to a number being sold

1o meet any tax hability) in 2009

Pensions

The Company makes employer contnibutions of 20% of Andrew
Mclver's salary and 16% of Jim Wilkinson's salary to their personal
pension schemes There are no Company pension arrangements in place

Share incentive schemes

The Company operates six share incentive schernes, namely the
Unapproved Share Option Scheme (the ‘Unapproved Scheme'), the
Sportingbet Pic Company Share Option Plan (the "IR Approved Scheme”),
the Sportingbet Plc Executive Share Option Scheme (the ‘Executive
Scheme'), the Sporngbet Long Term Retention Plan 2005 {the *2005
Share Plan’) the Sportingbet 2006 Restnicted Share Plan (the ‘2006 Share
Plan') and the Sportingbet Restricted Share Plan 2009 (the '2009 Share

hh

Plan'} Prior to the Company’s admission to AIM on 30 January 2001,
share options were granted under the Unapproved Scheme only Share
opiions are now only granted under the 2009 Share Plan The 2005
Share Plan was introduced on 2 August 2005 and the 2006 Share Plan
was introduced on 3 November 2006 The 2009 Share Plan was adopted
on 22 Muly 2008 and awards were granted under the 2009 Share Plan on
20 January 2009 The Company's policy to grant share options under the
Executive Scheme and awards under the 2006 Share Pan and the 2009
Share Plan 15 at the Remuneration Commitiee’s discretion as and when
considered appropriate

Entitlements under the 2005 Share Plan entail 2 loyalty element and

a performance element The loyalty element represents 35% of the
Executive Directors® total potenbal awards pursuant to the 2005 Share
Plan Partigpants who remain employed by the Company untl 31 July
2008 may exercise loyalty awards which have vested up to that date
Paruapants who remain employed by the Company until 31 July 2008
may exercise performance awards which may have vested, subject to
the satsfaction of certain performance condiions, up to that date
Only Executive Directors are entitled to particpate under the 2005
Share Plan, and all are subject to the same performance conditions
Detalls of the awards released tc the Executive Directors under the
2005 Share Plan are set out in the table on pages 52 to 56

The 2006 Share Plan entails a performance based award, calculated

as a multiple of salary using the three day average of the Company's
closing share price pnor to the award being made The award vests
after the relevant penods as contained within each participant’s award,
broadly following the end of the following financial year As with the
2005 Plan, the shares may only vest and be released subject to the
satisfaction of certain performance conditions Only Executive Directors
are entitled to participate under the 2006 Share Plan, and all are
subject to the same performance conditions

The 2009 Share Plan uses the same rules as those which govern the
2006 Share Plan However, there are differences in the nature of
awards granted under the 2009 Share Plan Entittements under the
2009 Share Plan entail a loyalty element and performance element

in equal proportions 20% of the Executive Directors’ total potential
award under the 2009 Share Plan vests and s released in November
2010, 30% of such award i1 November 2011 and 50% of such award
in November 2012 Shares comprised wathin the loyalty element of
the award may only vest and be released if the participant remamns
employed by the Company as at 31 July 2010, 31 July 2011 and 31
July 2012 respectively As with the 2005 Share Plan and the 2006 Share
Plan, shares compnsed within the performance element of the award
may only vest and be released if (3) the partiapant remams employed
by the Company as at 31 July 2010, 31 July 2011, and 31 July 2012
respectively, and {b) certain performance conditions are satisfied Only
Executive Directors are entitled to participate under the 2009 Share
Plan, and all are subject to the same performance conditicns

As an addibonal incentive, on 9 May 2006 the Remuneration
Committee granted Andrew Mclver the night to earn additional shares
in the Company These shares would vest in three equal amounts after
the three finanaal penods ending 2007, 2008 and 2009, subject 10 the
Company meeting the same performance conditions as the 2005 and
2006 Share Plans

For both the 2005 and 2006 Share Plans, performance conditions
are based on the extent to which growth in the Company's adjusted
continuing earnings per share {'EPS Growth') exceeds growth In the
retall pnices index ('RPl Growth') over a financial year of the Company
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For the performance award to be exercisable in full, EPS Growth

must exceed RP1 Growth by 5% per financial year compound

The proportion of the performance award exercisable increases

on a straight kne shding scale between 0 and 100% 1if EPS Growth
exceeds RPI Growth by any margin up to 5% over a financal year
The Remuneration Commitiee continues to believe that, in refation
to the 2005 and 2006 Share Plans, EPS Growth in excess of RPI Growth
15 the most appropriate measure for determining the increase in value
delivered to sharehclders by the Company's Executive Directors and
other senior executives The Remuneration Comrmittee reviews the
appropriateness of the performance measure and the speafic target
set when constdering each new grant of performance awards

For the 2009 Share Plan, the performance condition 1s based on

the extent to which growth in the Company's earmings before interest,
tax and amortisation ('EBITA Growth®) exceeds RPI Growth over a
finangal year of the Company

For the performance award to be exercisable in full, EBITA Growth

must exceed RPI Growth by 15% per financial year compound

The proportion of the performance award exerasable increases on a
straight line siding scale between 0 and 100% if EBITA Growth exceeds
RP Growth by any margin in excess of 5% over a finanaal year The
Remuneration Committee believes that, in refation to the 2009 Share
Plan, EBITA Growth in excess of RPl Growth s the appropnate measure
for determirmng the increase In value delivered to shareholders by the
Company's Executive Directors and other senior executives for the period
2009-2012 The Remuneration Committee reviews the appropnateness
of the perfermance measure and the specific target set when
considering each new grant of performance awards

Cash based long term incentive plan

In 2006, the Remuneration Commuttee reviewed the remuneration
and henefits packages of certain key employees As a resuit, a cash-
based long term incentive plan ('LTIP") was established and offered to
the Executive Directors and a small number of key employees, and
which was vaned in November 2006 1n order to retain key employees
following the enactment of the Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement
Act 2006 The LTIP pays a cash sum based on the relevant employee's
gross salary, 40% of which matured 1n December 2007, with the
remainder maturing in August 2009 In order for the employee to
receive such payments under the LTIP, they need to be in employment
up to and including 31 December 2007 (in respect of the 40%) and
31 July 2009 {in respect of the remainder)

In 2008, the Remuneration Commitiee reviewed the remuneration and
benefits packages of certain key employees As a result, a cash-based
long term incentive plan {'LTIF) was established and offered to the
Executive Directors and a small number of key employees in order to
retan such indmviduals The LTIP pays a cash sum in August 2012 based
on the relevant employee's gross salary In order for the employee to
receve such payment under the LTIP, they need to be in employment
up to and including 31 luly 2012

Total Shareholder Return

The following graph charts the movement in total cumulative
shareholder return (assuming reinvestment of dwvidends) of the Company
for the pericd from 14 May 2010 to 31 July 2010, compared with total
shareholder return relating 1o the FTSE All-Share Index {chosen for this
purpose as the Company 15 a constituens of this index)

By Order of the Board

D Talisman LLB {Hons} ACIS
Company Secretary

5 October 2010
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Regulatory Developments

The supply of betting and gaming services continues to be subject to a
complex, Inconsistent and often protectionist approach by junsdictions
worldwide However, action to address this by international trade
bod:es (such as the World Trade Crganisation and the European
Commission) has resulted in the censuning of certain nations and,
increasingly, the introduction of regulatory regimes for the actity

The Group continues to provide its services only from jurisdictions
where 1t 1s kcensed and regulated, and therefore the position in its
place of supply {and where its regulator and apphicable local laws
deem the gambling transaction to take place) 1s explicitly legai

tn order to prowde its worldwide gambling serace, the Group currently
maintains licences in Alderney, Antigua and Barbuda, Australia,
Northern Cyprus, South Africa and the UK

Major 1ssues of note in the last 12 months (all of which have been
widely reported) indude

a the possibility that the UK will impose regulatory requirements
(which will attract hicence fees) on offshore operators who target
the locat gambling market,

b an ongoing move towards regulation of the gambling sector in
a number of EU junsdichons, including France, Denmark, Haly
{through a wider requlatory regime) and Greece,

¢ reduced Eurcpean Commission {“Commission ™) pressure on
EL) and EFTA Member States (principally Norway) to justify their
national gambling regimes {induding proposed new regulatory
regimes) in kght of the free trade requirements of international law
also reflected in the protecuonist jJudgments of the European Court
of Justice (the "ECI")in the cases of Santa Casa (in Portugal), the
Betfarr and Ladbrokes cases (in the Netherlands), and Sjoberg and
Gerdin {in Sweden), albeit the impact of these judgments has been
tempered to a degree by the recent Carmen Media (and others)
case In Germany, and the Engelmann case in Austria, and

d increasing attempts to iImpose indirect taxes (wa “product fees ‘)
on gambling operators by certain States in Australia

The European Union (EU)

EU Member States are subject to scrutiny from the Commission and,
as "guardian” of the Treaty of the Functionung of the European Umion
(the "TFEU™), 1t closely monutors existing and developing legislauon in
the EU The principal method by which the Commussion has applted
pressure on Member States 1s through the use of ‘infringement
proceedings’ against EU Member States in contravention of EU law
Through such proceedings, the Commussion has asked 2 number of
States to amend their laws restnicting the free movement of gambling
services The ongoing pressure from the Commussion, and in some
cases national court deaisions declanng domestic legistation to be
incompatible with EU law, has led to a domestic revtew of prohibitive
legislation in a number of junsdictions, including France, Italy,
Sweden and Denmark
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On 9 Septernber 2009, the (ECJ) delvered its judgment in Case
C-42/07 between Departamento de Jogos da Santa Casa da
Misencordia de Lisboa (¥Santa Casa”™) and Bwin, and effectively

uphetd the Portuguese national law restncting certain betting and
gaming activities 1o the State monopoly, Santa Casa While the £CJ
maimtained the need for restnctions on gambling services to be justified
n the public interest, the judgment 1s unambiguous in its vindication

of State monopolies as an effective method for doing so This decision
was followed by cases in the Netherlands {in which the court upheld
the Dutch monopoly} and in Sweden where the counts indirectly upheld
the monopoly by its endorsement of the prevention of adverusing of
unauthonsed gambhing (albeit 1t would be discriminatory if the Swedish
authorities imposed stricter penatties on the adverusing of gambling by
unauthorised orgamisations outstde of Sweden than on the adverusing
of gambling by unauthonsed orgamisations within Sweden)

However, the most recent cases in Germany and Austna highlight that
the supply of gambling via monopclies ts not always compatible wath
Member States’ wader TFEU obligations

On 9 September 2010, the EC) delivered its judgment in a number of
cases In which indmdual German states had sought ECI gurdance on a
series of dentical points of prinaple The issue was whether permitting
a monopaoly for certain gambling products was compatible with Articles
49 and 56 of the TFEU The ECJ determined that there was potential
incompatibility with EU law where a monopoly existed to protect the
public interest but the monapoly was also advertising to maximise

its profits andfor encourage partcipation in more addictive forms

of gambling Thus 1s broadly good news for private operators, albeit
the ECJ made 1t clear that it considered that, generally, monopolies
were the best vehicle through which to ensure that adequate social
responsibility and player protection standards were met Whilstitis
now for the local German courts to consider how best to implement
the judgment, this process may be superseded insofar as the German
Federal government determines that it will commut to a licensing
system for online gambling products

In the Austnan Engelmann case (in which judgrnent was given

on 9 September 2010, the £CJ found 1n favour of Engelmann,

and determined that it was disproportionate to have a licensing
regime which required licensees to be a public incorporated
corporation and established in the junsdiction where the licence
was awarded In addition the ECJ stated that the award of a
monaopoly to Casinos Austna without 3 compentive tender process
was likewise inappropnate and contrary to Articles 49 and 56 of
the TFEU Therefore, although the case related to bricks and mortar
establishments from which gambling sennces were supplied, one can
extrapolate a precedent that any similarly chsproportionate licensing
regimes for online supphes without a competitive tendenng process
would hkewase be subject to challenge
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The European Union (continued)

Spain

As a result of the uncertainty over the legality of the prewision of onfine
gambting, which 15 not expressly prohibited by Spamish [aw, Spain
has histonically adopted a tolerant approach to the supply of foreign
gambling services into the junsdiction

Madnd and the Basgue Region have both introduced licensing
regimes for online betting, which has led to the Spanish government
taking steps towards a nationwide system of regulation which will
permit operators to obtain a Spanish gambling licence The draft
legislative process 1s ongoing, and was recently approved by the
Councll of Ministers of Spain on 17 September 2010 As a result,
other Spanish regions, incdluding Catalonia, Castila-Leon and La Rigja,
have announced their intention to regulate the sector on a regional
basis

Unsted Kingdom

The Group holds a icence granted by the Alderney Gaming Control
Commussion, and is therefore permitted to advertise in the UK under
the Gambling Act 2005 which permits UK advertising for Alderney
licensees on the back of Alderney's "whitelisted” status

In March 2010, the Department for Culture Media and Sport
{*DCMS*) Iniiated a consultation regarding 2 system for the
regulation of remate gambling in UK The consultation also looked

at whether operators who advertise in the UK should face new
regulatory requirements (attracting consequential icence fees) to
ensure a more even financial treatment of UK operators and non-UK
operators who target the UK market The tax consequences of such

a scheme are not addressed in the consultation and therefore the
positson is unclear The consultaten closed in June 2010 and the DCMS
15 due to report s findings to Parliament before the end of 2010

France
France has historically been a staunch opponent of the provision of
online gambling sennces by operators without a French licence

In light of this approach, the Commussion had put substantial pressure
on France s domestic regulation of online gambling, stating that its
laws were not compatible with EC law As a result of such pressure,
France iitiated a licensing reqime for online sports betung and poker
with effect from 12 May 2010 The Group ceased taking business
from French atizens with effect {rom that date In addition, Arel, the
regulator tnitiated proceedings aganst 19 operatars for continuing

10 take wagers from French cotizens A number of these proceedings
were settled out of court but Anjel has succeeded against unlicensed
operators The Court of First Instance in Pans has recently ordered
Internet service providers to block access to these unlicensed operators
{which 15 now permitted under the new French gammg laws)

Germany

Despite criticism from the Cornmssion, the Interstate Gambling Treaty
remains In force In Germany The Treaty effectively provides that all
forms of online gambling are untawful where they are targeted at
German residents

While the current official position in Germany 1s that the Treaty 1s not
to be amended, we understand that the German government s still
under intense pressure from the Commussion and at a poliucal level
internally to amend the legisiaion However, the Treaty expires at the
end of January 2011 1n any event Furthermore, enforcement acton
against operators where they actively target German residents

{induding through local marketing and even operation) has been
curbed due to the lack of clanty in the legal position  Although

there can be no guarantee that enforcement action will not occur
agamnst operators wath a domestic presence, the risk of conwicuon 15
considered low The most likely enforcement action being initiated
will be cwl claims on an indwdual state basis albert that this may
lead to further ECJ appeals in due course, particularly in ight of the
recent ECJ deaisions in relation to Germany which found that on the
particular cases referred, there was inconsistent {(and poorly cantrolled)
treatment of the particular gambling products that could be supplied
by monopolies This, on the face of it, was held contrary to Germany$s
obligations under the TFEU

In practice, therefare, legislation that was intended to almost
comprehensively block onfine gambling has had only hrted effect

The general inability of the German government to block online
gambling websites, coupled with the questionable legality of the
legislation, {particularly in hight of the recent cases) has led to a continued
supply of online gambling services and, as far as the Group 1s aware,

an absence of extraterritonial enforcement against the actwity it remains
to be seen therefore whether the EC) findings will prompt a more
urgent consideration of an online licensing regime simifar to the

French and ltallan models

Greece

Greece has been the subject of several challenges by the Commissian !
and has previously been steadfast in defending the mancpoly ‘
providers’ position {OPAP and ODIE) However, in July 2010 the

Minister of Economy proposed a draft bill which would make several

changes to the way in which gambling 1s regulated in Greece,

including a proposal to permit the hcensing of online betting {excluding

harseracing} This 1s now the subject of a consultation process The

consultation document seeks views as to whether the market should

only give the concession to OPAP for a pentod of time, whether to hmit

the number of hcensees {which will be awarded in an auction process)

or whether to award licences to all those who apply and comply wath

the licensing cntena

It 15 not anticipated that there wall be any change 10 laws until the
second half of 2011

haly |
haly has changed 1ts monopoly-onentated stance on online gambhing

and has started to permit a number of non-italian bookmakers to !
obtain licences to operate onhine enabling betting offenngs from

certain outlets such as newsagents, bars and cafes The Incentivi

Decree recently extended licensable offerings to indude cash ning

games for poker and other casinoe games

The EC also approved Italy’s Abruzzo Law on 5 May 2010 and
announced that it had closed proceedings aganst Italy The Abruzzo
Law allows gambling operators offenng their services in Italy to have
web servers and a registered company outside of Iialy, as long as they
are still within the European Econormuc Area or a country that has a
bilateral 2greement with Italy

Norway

Norway implemented legislation (which became effective in 2010)
which established that processing of payments for unhicensed gambling
where such gambhing 1s unlicensed in Norway 1s an accessory offence
for financial services prowiders The Group has ceased taking business
from Norwegian atizens




Rest of the World

Turkey

Provision of gambling services In Turkey 1s generally prohibited by
Article 228 of the Turkish Cnminal Code In addition, the Law no
7258 regarding Prowision of Betting and Luck Games in Football and
QOther Sportive Competitions (*Law 7258") expltaitly bans offshore
onginated onkne gambling conducted without a local authonsatian,
whether the operator Is based in or outside Turkey

Turkish law asserts junisdiction over any act that violates the laws of
Turkey If the result of such act occurs within Turkey, irrespective of
the lacation of the offender Accordingly, the actnaties of the Group,
n taking online gamblhing custom from Turkey, are considered iilegal
under Turkish law

In addition, Article 8 of Law no 5651 regarding Regulation of
Broadcasts in Internet Environment and Prevenuon of Commutted by
Broadcasting (“Law 56517) permits the Turkish authonties to block
online gambling «f “satisfactory susptcion regarding gambling services
anses in such broadcasting”

Turkey 1s not a member of the EU, nor has it included online gambling
i its WTO free trade commitments

The Group relies on the argument that a country’s domestic law
cannot make illegal a supply remotely and lawfully made from another
junsdiction It remains lega! for customers to transact wath offshore
online operators, although customers may be subject to administrative
(rather than cnminal) enforcement under Turkish law The Group
continues to accept bets from Turkish residents, although it does not
have employees, nor does it conduct adverusing actmty from within
the terntory

Australia

The Group hotd a sports betting hicence in Australia in the Northern
Territory and provides senaces from the Northern Terntory to other
states The Group blocks Australians from accessing any of the Group’s
other products It has been held, as a result of vartous count cases 1o
which the Group and others have been a party, that holding a sports
betting hicence in one state entitles the licensee to advertise and supply
in another However, there has been a growang trend in relation to
payment of fees for the use of "sports products (e g race fields and
sporting fixtures) which 1s levied against betung operators in Austraha
Such fees are levied on operators licensed in Australia, in addition to
taxes they pay in therr icensing state

Race fields legislation exists in every Australian state except the
Northern Terntory The race fields legislation, however, 1s subject to
ongoing legal challenge, pnncipally on the basis that there exists
ant-competitive discrimination between bookmakers and the tote
incumbent monopolies The Productivity Commuttee {tasked wath re-
evaluating the gambling industry) has taken the view that there may
be meni in such fees being dealt with an a national basis via some
form of national statutory schemme

Unlike race fields, and with the exception of Victona, no state or
terntory has legistation that speafically requires batting operators to
pay fees for the use of sporting fixture information However, a general
practice has developed under which corporate bookmakers enter into
direct commeraal agreements with the national admmnistrative bodtes
for each sport Such agreements typically prowde for a fee equivalent
to 5% of revenue to be paid to the administrative bodies

United States
The US continues to prohibit online gambling supplied from offshore

Oespite the current prohibitive position, there have been suggestions
that, in kght of the economic downturn in the US and the resultant loss
of revenue for land-based casino operators, liberahisatton may occur in
the online gambling market Increasing pressure from consumers and
lobby groups has also resulted in legisiative proposals To date these
have not amounted to a change in the existing prohibitive regme
although HR2267, Senator Frank’s Internet Garnbling Regulation,
Consumer Protection and Enforcement Act has been approved by the
House Finanoal Services Commission (albert with certain amendments)
and now moves 1o the floor for debating, a possible further step
towards a licensing regime

On 20 September 2010, the Group entered into a Non-Prosecution
Agreement {the “Agreement”) with the Office of the United States
Attorney for the Southern Distnct of New York (“SDNY ™}, acung on
behalf of the United States Department of Justice, wath respect to the
Group's previous actvities In the Unrted States Under the terms of the
Agreement, SDNY will not seek to prosecute the Group for activities
related to s internet gambling business wath customers in the United
States from 1998 to 2006 The Group ceased to offer online gambling
to United States customers on 12 October 2006

As part of the Agreement, the Group has agreed to pay a total of
$33m (£21 3m) 1o SDNY. payable in three instalments () $15m

(£9 7m) payable no later than 30 September 2010 (1) $12m (£7 7m)
no later than 30 September 2011 and (1) $6m (£3 9m) no later than
31 March 2012

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to cooperate wath
SDNY and disdose information to SDNY relating to the Group’s former
internet gambling business in the United States and adhere to certain
further obligations from the date of the Agreement with respect to its
future conduct in the United States The Group has also acknowledged
and accepted certain details regarding s former business activities in
the United States which are set out in the Statement of Facts which
form part of the Agreement

The Group believes that this setlement enables a ine to be drawn
under 1ts previous activittes n the Urited States

Asia
The regulatory regime In many Asian countries is currently prohibitive
and, at present, the Graup has no operations or actmities In Asia
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Sportingbet Plc

We have audited the Group Financial Statements of Sportingbet Pic
for the year ended 31 July 2010 which compnise the consolidated
tncome Statement, consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomne,
consolidated Balance Sheet consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equrty, consolidated Cash flow Statement and the related notes

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation 1s applicable law and international Finanoal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 15 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are reguired to state to them
1 an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
perrritted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibiliies of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responstbilities Statement

set out on page 51, the directors are responsible for the preparation

of the Group Financial Statements and for being satsfied that they
give a true and fair vew Our responsibility 1s to audit the Group
Finanaal Statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audnt of the finanaal statements
A description of the scope of an audit of Financial Statements 1S
provided on the APB’s website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/lUKP

Opinion on finanoal statements
In our opinion the Group Financial Statements

* give a true and fair vew of the state of the Group s affairs as
at 31 July 2010 and of its profit for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of
the Campanies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the I1AS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the

Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

* the information given in the Directors’ Report far the financral
year for which the Group Financial Statements are prepared is
consistent with the Group Finanaal Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
In OUr opinIon

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations
we requere for our audit or

+ a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared
by the company

Under the Listing Rules, we are required to review

¢ the Directors’ statement set out on page 50, in relation to going
concern, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Company’s comphance with the nine provistons of the june 2008
Combined Code specified for our review

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Parent Company Finangat
Statements of Sportingbet Pic for the year ended 31 July 2010 and the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as
havng been audited

A w2’

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on hehalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

5 October 2010




Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 July 2010

Notes

Year ended

31 July 2010
£m

3t July 2009
fm

Amounts wagered 4 19713 15772
Net gaming revenue 3.4 2075 1636
Admirustrative expenses excluding exceptional items, share (1721) (132 5)
option charge and amortisation of other intangible assets

Group operating profit before exceptional tems,

share option charge and amortisation of other 354 3
intangible assets

Other administrative expenses

Exceptional items 5 (24.5) (42)
Share option charge 7 (2.0} 31
Amortisation of other intangible assets 13 (1.8) (19
Total administrative expenses (200 4) (1417
Group operating profit 71 219
Finance income S 04 07
Finance costs 9 (0 6) (03)
Profit before taxation 6 69 223
Taxation 10 (30 {0 5)
Profit for the year 39 218
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 2 - (9 4)
Group profit for the year 39 124
Profit attributable to the owners of the parent 39 124
Profit per ordinary share - continuing operations

Basic 11 038p 4 6p
Diluted 11 07p 42p
Profit per ordinary share

Basic 11 08p 26p
Dituted 1 07p 24p

The Notes on pages 66 to 91 form part of these finanaial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2010 2009
£m tm
.
Profit for financial year 39 124
Other comprehensive income
Amounts taken to equity under designated cash flow hedges 0.3 12
Amounts reclassified to the income statement to match the hedged items 0.3 {05)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 15 15
Net income recognised directly in other comprehensive income 241 22
Total comprehensive income for the year 6.0 146
Attnburtable to
Owners of the parent 6.0 146
6.0 146




Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 July 2010 As at
Notes 31 July 2010 31 July 2009
fm fm
o,
Non-current assets
Gooadwill 12 415 412
Other intangible assets 13 218 159
Property, plant and equipment 14 271 219
Deferred tax asset 10 20 14
924 804
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 126 134
Cash and cash equvalents 16 589 443
Denvatives 20 13 07
728 584
Current habilitres
Trade and other payables 17 (54 4) 410
Interest bearing Ioans and borrowings 17 (53) am
Contingent consideration 17 - 05
(597 {45 5)
Net current assets 131 129

Non-current liabilities

Trade and cther payables 17 (116) -
Qbligations under finance leases 19 (1.2) -
Long-term provisions 18 - on
{12 8) o1
Net assets 927 932
Equity
Issued share capital 21 05 05
Share premium 599 594
Retained earnings 323 333
Total equity 927 932

The Notes on pages 66 to 91 form part of these Financial Statements These Finanoal Statements were approved by the Board and authonsed
for issue on 5 October 2010

A Mclver
Director

/—P
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 July 2010 Issued Share Shares to Own Profit and Foreign Total
share premium be 1ssued shares  loss accourt exthange
cap|tal account reserve
] fm {m ] fm fm fm
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________|}

As at August 2008 05 563 90 - 20t (15) 844
Acquisitions - 31 (90) - - - {59)
Share option charge - - - - 31 - 31
Profit for the year - - - - 124 - 124
Purchase of own shares - - - (30 - - 30)
Issue of own shares in lieu of options - - - 30 30 - -
Hedging reserve - - - - 07 - 07
Foreign currency exchange - - - - - 15 15
As at 1 August 2009 as 594 . - 333 - 932
Employee share options - 05 - - {06} - 01
Share option charge - - - - 11 - 11
Didends paid - - - - {75 - (75)
Profit for the year - - - - 39 - 39
Hedging reserve - - - - 06 - 06
foreign currency exchange - - - - - 15 15
As at 31 July 2010 05 599 - - 308 15 g27

The movement In Group equity of £0 5m (2009 £8 8m) I1s wholly represented by the movernents shown in equity reserves and share capital
in Note 21 and the statement above All Group equity 15 attnbutable to owners of the parent The movement in shares to be 1ssued of £9 Om

represents settlement of congideration in relation o historic acquisitions




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 July 2010 Year ended
Notes 31 July 2010 31 July 2009
£m fm
s e
Group profit after taxation 39 124
Depreqation 54 47
Software amortisation 57 40
Other amortisation 18 19
Loss on disposal 2 - 79
Share option charge 20 31
Finance cost / income) 02 (0 4)
Taxation 30 05
Operating cash flows before movements 20 341
in working caprtal
Decrease / (increase) In receivables 08 (48
Increase / {decrease) in payables 250 a7
Cash generated by operations 478 196
Income tax paid a0} (26)
Net cash from operating activities 438 170
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 14 (10 4} [CR)]
Purchases of software 13 (133) (66)
Acquisition of subsidianes {0 6) (4 5)
Interest (paid) / received {0.2) 03
Net cash from discontinued operations 2 - {12}
Cash used in investing activities (24 5) (18 1)
Exercise of share options (10) on
Issued share capital 02 -
Finance leases 25 -
Dividends paid (7 5) -
Purchase of own shares - 30)
Repayment of borrowings - (1 6)
Net cash from financing activities (58) @
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash
135 (58)
equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 443 494
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 11 07
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 589 44 3

The Notes on pages 66 1o 91 form part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

Basics of Preparation
The finanaal information prowded is for the Group's financial
year ending 31 July 2010

The finanaa! information has been prepared in accordance with
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs "}
as adopted by the European Union

The IFRS financial information has been drawn up on the basis of
accounting policies consistent with those applied in the financial
statements for the year to 31 July 2009 except for the following

s JAS 1 - Presentation of Finangal Statements (revised 2007)
& |45 23 {revised) — Borrowing Costs
* |AS 27 (amendment) - Consalidated and Separate financial statements

* 1AS 39 (amendment) - Financial Instruments Recogrition and
Measurement — Eligible hedged stems

* IFRS 2 (amendment) Share based payment — Vesting conditions
and cancellations

* IFRS 3 (rewised) — Business Combmations

¢ IFRS 7 (amendment) — Financial instruments — Disclosures -
Improving Disclosures about financial instruments

s IFRS 8 Operating Segments
* improvements to IFRSs 2008
e improvements to IFRSs 2009

The adoption of 1AS 1 {rewsed) has required the reconciiation of
movements In equity, previously disclosed in note 21 1n the financial
statements for the year ended July 31 2009, to be presented as a
primary statement enitled ‘Consohdated Statement of Changes in
Equity” In addition, the Consalidated Statement of Recognised Income
and Expense has been replaced with the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the
Group for the purposes of preparation of this financial information

The effect of adopting the above standards and interpretations 1s not
matenal to Group earnings or 1o shareholders’ funds in the current or
prior year Therefore, prior year infermation has not been restated, hence
an additional compantive balance sheet has not been presented FRS 7,
IFRS 8 and 1AS 1 (rewised) relate to disclosure only, prior year information
has been redassified to conform wath the current presentation The
reclassifications do not affect pnor year balance sheets

Standards in 1ssue not yet effecuve

The IASB and IFRIC have 1ssued the followng Standards and
Interpretations, apphicable to the Group, which are effective for penods
starting after the date of these Financial Statements and are yet to be
adopted by the Group

e 1AS 24 (revised 2009) Related Party Disclosures - 1 January 2011

* IFRS 2 (amendment} Share based payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions — ¥ January 2010

s {FRS 9 Financial Instruments - 1 January 2013

* [FRIC 19 - Extinguishing Finanaial Liabilities wath Equity Instruments
-1 july 2010

* |mprovements to IFRSs - May 2010

The Group does not anticipate that the adoption of these Standards
and Interpretations will have a matenal effect on rts financial
statements on intial adoption

Basis of consohdation — subsidianes
The Group Finanaal Statements for the year consclidate the Financial
Statements of Sportingbet Flc and the entihies 1t controls (its subsidianes)

Subsidianes are consohdated from their date of acquisition, being

the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated untd the date that such control ceases Control compnses
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee
S0 as 1o obtain benefit from 1ts actvities and 1s achieved through direct
or indirect ownership of voting nghts, currently exerasable or convertible
potential voting nghts or by way of contractual agreement Accounting
policies are consistently apphed across the Group All Inter-~company
balances and transactions are eiminated

Business combinations

On acquisition, the assets, habiliies and contingent habilities of a
subsidiary are measured at therr fair values at the date of acquisition
Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the fair values of the identifiable
net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwill Any defiency of the cost
of acquisition below the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired
(e discount on acgquisiban) 1s credited to the Income Statement in the
pencd of acquisition

Contingent and deferred consideration ansing as a result of acquisitions
I1s stated at a measure of farr value at the date of acquisition Contingent
consideration Is based on management’s best estimate of the likely
outcome The farr value of contingent share constderation 15 measured
based on the market price of shares at acquisition Subsequent
remeasurement of contingent consideration 1s recognised in the
Income statement




Amounts wagered

Amounts wagered represents ameounts staked in respect of bets placed
on sporting events in the year, net win in respect of casino and gaming,
and rake in respect of poker games that have concluded in the year
Amounts wagered are stated net of certain promotional bonuses

Net gaming revenue
Net gaming revenue 1s measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable, and comprises the following

«  Sports betttng Gains and losses in respect of bets placed on
sporting events in the year, stated after betting taxes and certain
promotional bonuses

+  (Open positions are carned at fair market value and gans and
losses ansing on ths valuation are recogrised in revenue, as well
as gains and losses realised on positions that have closed

+ Casino and gaming Net win in respect of Dets placed on casino
games that have concluded in the year, stated net of certain
promotional bonuses

= Poker Netwin n respect of rake for poker games that have
concluded in the year, stated net of certain promotional bonuses

*  Where the Group refers to gaming revenue, this represents net
gaming revenue before the deduction of promotional bonuses

Goodwall

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisiion over the
Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and habihties
acquired Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose
of mpairment testing

Goodwll allocated to each cash generating unit s not amortised and
15 reviewed for imparrment at least annually Where impairment anses
on a cash generating unit, it 15 allocated inially agatnst Goodwall and
thereafter pro rata amongst other assets Any impairment Is recogrised
immediately in the Income Statement and 1s not subsequently reversed
Goodwill ansing on earlier acquisitions was being amartised over its
estimated useful hife of 20 years In accordance with the transitional
prowvisions of IFRS 1 First tme adoption of iFRS, the unamortised
balance of goodwill at 31 July 2006 was frozen and rewiewed for
impairment, and will be reviewed for impairment at least annually
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Computer software

Where, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group's expenditure tn
refaton to development of internet actmties results in future economic
benefits, these costs are caprtalised and amortised over the useful
economic ife of the asset

Development costs are capitalised only when it 15 probable that future
econormic benefit will result from the project and the following critena
are met

+ The technical feasibility of the product has been ascertained

*  Adequate technical, finanaal and other resources are available
to complete and sell or use the intangible asset

¢ The Group can demonstrate how the intangible asset wall
generate future economic benefits and the ability to use or sell
the Intangible asset can be demonstrated

* Itis the intention of management to complete the intangible
asset and use 1t or sell it
¢ The development costs can be measured reliably

Amortisation 1s provided on computer software at a rate calculated to
wite each asset down to its estmated residual value, using the straight
line method, over its expected useful hfe, as follows

Computer Software 20-33% on cost

Methods of amortisation, residual values and useful hives are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Other intangible assets

Identifizble intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations,
that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised
at therr fair value at the acquisiion date and amorused over ther
useful economic life as follows

Superbahus URL 33% on cost

Belmond International Limited

20 n
- marketing contract % on cost
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated
deprecation Depreciation 1s prowided on all property, plant and
equipment except for freehold land at rates calculated to write each
asset down to its estimated residual value, using the straight line
method, over its expected useful life, as follows

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 25% on cost
Leasehald improvermnents 10% on cost
Motor vehicles 25% on cost

Computer equipment 20-33% on cost

Methods of depreaiation, resrdual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date Leasehold
improvements are included within fixtures, fitings and equipment in
the property, plant and equipment note

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of 1ts property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets

have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (f any) Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are mdependent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
nisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated 1o be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount

of the asset (or cash-generating unit} 1s reduced to Its recoverable
amount Animpairment loss 1s recogrised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset Is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recogmised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) tn pnor years A reversal of an impairment loss 15
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s camed
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss 15 treated as a revaluation sncrease

Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to profit over the term of the debt so that
the amount charged 1s at a constant rate on the carrying amount

Finance costs Include 1ssue costs, which are imtially recogrised as a
reduction in the proceeds of the asscoated finanaal instrument

Financial iInstruments

Financial assets and financia! liabtlities are recognised on the Group’s
Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
prowisions of the instrument

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recognised initially at farr value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision far impairment A prowision for mparment of trade
recewvables s established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
ongmnal terms of the recewvables Significant financial difficulties of

the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments {(more than
60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade recevable

1s impaired The amount of the prowsion 15 the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estmated

future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective interest rate
The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss 1s recegnised in the
Income Statement withun ‘Other administrative expenses” When a
trade recevable is uncollectable, 1t 1s watten off against the allowance
account for trade recevables Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited agamst "Other adrministrative
expenses’ In the Income Statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand deposits with banks
It also includes cash reserves and shart term cash in transit held by
payment service providers

Financial habilities and equrty

Financial habiliies and equity instruments are ¢lassified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity
instrument is any contract that ewdences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabiities

Interest beanng loans and other borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, and
the difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs} and

the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest methad

Borrowngs are cassified as current habidites unless the Group has
an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date




Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest-beanng and are stated initially at ther
fair value and thereafter at their amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method The farr value of trade and other payables has not
been disclosed as, due to their short duration, management considers
the carrying values recognised in the Balance Sheet to be a reasonable
approximation of their fair value

Equrty instruments
Equity instruments ssued are recorded at the proceeds receved,
net of direct ssue costs

Denvative finanaal instruments
The Group's actmities expose it pnmanily to the financal nsks of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates

The Group uses denvative finanaal instruments to reduce exposure to
foreign exchange rate movements The Group does not hold or issue
derwative finanaal instruments for speculative purposes

Dervatives are intially recogrised at fair value on the date a dervative
contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at therr

fair value, calculated using erither discounted cashflow technigues

or by reference to market pnces supplied by banks The method

of recogmsing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature
of the item being hedged The Group designates certain derivatives
as hedges of the variability of cash flows (cash flow hedge)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging mstruments and hedged items as well
as its sk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactons The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in the cash flows of the hedged items

The use of financial dervatives Is governed by the Group’s policies
approved by the Board of Directors, which prowide written principles
on the use of financial denvatives

Denvative finanoal instruments not eligible for hedge accounting are
recogrised in the Balance Sheet at farr value calculated using erther
discounted cash flow techrugues or by reference to market prices
supplies by banks Changes in their fair value are recognised in the
Income Statement
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Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 15 recogrused in equity
The gain or loss relating to the meffective portion 1s recognised
immediately in the Income Statement

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income n the penods when the hedged
item will affect profit or loss However, when the hedged transaction
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a liability, the gains
and losses prewiously deferred in equity are transferred from other
comprehensive income and included in the intial measurement of

the cost of the asset or iability

Fair value measurements are based on quoted prices in active markets
for the same instrument

When a hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in ather comprehensive Income at that time remains
In equity and 1s recogmised when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately
recognised In the Income Statement When a forecast transaction 1s
no longer expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported In ather comprehensive income 1s iImmediately transferred
to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Dividends

Dindends are recognised when they become legally payable
Interim dividends are recognised when paid Final dvidends are
recogruised when approved by the shareholders at an Annual
General Meeting

Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the Finanoal Statements of each of the Groups
entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”)
The consolidated Financial Statemenits are presented in sterling (£)
which s the parent’s funcional and presentational currency

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions of ndmdual companies are translated at
the rates ruling when they occurred Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the closing spot rate Any differences
are taken to the Income Statement

The results of overseas operations are translated at the average rates

of exchange during the year and their balance sheets translated into
stering at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date
Exchange differences which anse from translation of the opening net
assets and results of foraign subsidiary undertakings and from translating
the Income Staterment at an average rate are 1aken 1o reserves
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income
Statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible The Group’s iability for current tax

is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carmypng amounts of assets and hiabilities tn

the Finanaial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and & accounted for using the balance
sheet hability method Deferred tax liabiities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recogrised 1o the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible termporary differences can be utilised
Such assets and habiliues are not recogrised if the temporary difference
anses from the iniial recogrubion of goodwill or of other assets and
habilites in a transaction {other than in a business combination) that
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilives are recognised for taxable temporary differences
ansing on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group 15 able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temparary difference wall not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits wilt be avallable to aflow al! or part of the
asset 1o be recovered

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in accordance with laws which have been enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax Is charged or credited
In the Income Statement, excepi when i1t relates to iterns charged or
credited directly to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred tax Is also dealt with in other comprehensive income

Employee benefits

Pension costs

For defined contribution arrangements the amount charged to

the Income Statement In respect of penston costs and other post-
retirement benefits 1s the contnbutions payable in the year Differences
between contributtons payable in the year and contributions actually
paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments n the Balance Sheet

Share based employee remuneration

Where share optrons are awarded to employees, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant 1s charged to the Income Statement over
the vesting period, with the corresponding credit to the profit and

loss reserve Non-markat vesting conditions are taken mnto account

by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at

each balance sheet date 5o that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period 1s based on the number of options
that eventually vest Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair
value of the options granted As long as all other vesting conditions are
satistied, a charge 1s made irespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied The cumulative expense 15 not adjusted for
failure 1o achieve a market vesting condition

Where the terms of the options are madified before they vest, the
increase In the fair value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, 1s also charged to the Income Statement
over the remaiming vesting penod

Where eguity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees, the Income Statement 1s charged with the farr value
of goods and services receved

The proceeds received, net of any directly attnbutable transacuon costs,
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exerased

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substanually all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee All the other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases and other similar centracts, which
confer rights and obligations similar to those attached to owned assets,
are caprtalised as property plant and equipment and are deprectated
over the shorter of the lease terms and thetr useful lives The capital
elements of future lease obligations are recarded as habilities, while the
interest alernents are charged to the income statement over the period
of the leases to produce a constant rate ¢f charge on the balance of
capiial repayments outstanding Hire purchase transactions are dealt
with similarly, except that assets are depreciated over their useful lives

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight kne basis over
the lease term, even If the payments are not made on such a basis
Benefits recewved and recevable as an incentive to sign an operating lease
are similarly spread on a straight line basis over the lease term

The Group as lessar

Rental income from the Groups 1and and buildings, accounted for
within property, plant and equipment, 1s recognised on a straight line
basis over the lease term




Exceptional items

Exceptional itemns are those that in management's judgement need

to be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence in order for the user
1o obtain a proper understanding of the finangal Information

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and 1t 1s prabable that the Group will be required
1o settle that obligation Prowisions are measured at the Directors” best
estmate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect 1s matenal

Cntical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the accounting pokicies, which are detalled in
this note, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies
that are not readily apparent from other sources The estmates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ
from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis Rewisions to accounting estimates are recogmised in the period

in which the estimate Is revised if the rewision affects only that penod,
or in the period of the rewsion and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods

The estimates and assumpuons, which have a significant risk of causing
a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estmatian of
the value in use of the cash-generating units The value in use calculation
requires the entity to esttimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and select a surtable discount raie in
order to calculate present value Note 12 prowvides informaton on the
assumptions used in these Finanaal Statements
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Sports betting open positions

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy management
monitors open betting positions on a monthly basis 1o ensure any
significant changes in fair value are recogrised in revenue Note 20
sets out management’s measurement basis

Share based payments

Management apples valuation techmques to calculate the fair value

of share option charges Note 22 provides information on the choice of
valuation techrigue and the assumptions used in these Financal Statements

Intangible assets

For acquisitions that occurred on or after 1 August 2006, management
has recognised separately identifiable intangible assets on the Balance
Sheet These intangible assets have been valued based on expected
future cash flow projections from existing customers The calculations
of the value and estimated future economic life of the assets involve,
by the nature of the assets, significant jJudgement

Customer habilities

Customer liabilities represent cash held by the Group on behalf

of customers These are stated net of an allowance for uncollected
dormant balances Management apply judgement calculating the
allowance by reference to player terms and conditions In assessing
the hkelihcod of balances being reclaimed

Hedge accounting

In management’s jJudgement the Group satisfies the necessary
cntena to enable hedge accounting to be applied to certain
denvative Instruments Note 20 provides further information
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2. Discontinued operations

Sale of talian operations
On 21 July 2009, the Group$ licensed ltalian operation, Sportingbet htalia S p A, was sold to the local management team for a nomimal consideration

Income statement of discontinued operations

Year ended
3N July 2010 3 luly 2009
£m fm
- "= ]
Amounts wagered - 14 1
Net gaming revenue - 21
Administrative expenses - (36)
Operating loss - (1 5)
Loss before taxation - (15)
Taxation - -
Loss for the year - {15)
Loss on disposal - (79
Loss for the pencd from discontinued operations - 94)
Cash Flow statement of discontinued operations
Year ended
31 Juty 2010 31 July 2009
fm fm
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ]
Loss after taxation - {15)
Depreciation - 02
Operating cash flows before movement in working caprtal - {13)
Decrease in recevables - 04
Decrease in payables - {03)
Cash generated by operations - 01
Net cash from operating actvities - {(12)
Cash used in investing activities . -
Net cash used in financing activities - -
Net decreases in cash and cash equivalents in the year - (12
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod - 12

Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod - -




3. Net gaming revenue

2010 0%

fm im
.|
Gaming revenue 226 3 1817
Promotional bonuses (18 8) {18 1)
Net gaming revenue 2075 1636

4. Operating segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently orgamsed into three geographical regions — Europe, Australia and Emerging Markets
These regions are the basis on which the Group reports its aperating segments

The foltowing table presents revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding the Group's operating segments
for the years ended 31 July 2010 and 31 luly 2009

Emerging Markets refer to the Group's operations in Canada, Brazil and South Africa

200

Europe Australia Emerging Unallacaled Continuing Discontinued

Markets central costs operations operaiions

Toial Total

fm £m fm fm fm fm

. _______________________________________________|
Amounts wagered 1,157 8 7439 696 - 19713 -
Net gaming revenue 167 4 336 65 - 2075 -
Depreciation and amortisation

of software 9N (10) 04 (11 1) -
Administrative expenses excluding

exceptional items, share option charge- (1122) (24 8) @7 (193) (161 0) -

and other amortisation

Group operating profit before
exceptional items, share option 455 78 18 (197) 354 -
charge and other amortisation

Other administrative expenses

Exceptional items - - - (24 5) (24 5) -
Share option charge (05) on - (14) (20 -
Other amortisation 18 - - - (18 -
Total administrative expenses (124 2) (25 9) 47n {456) (200 4) -
Operating profit/(loss) 432 77 i8 {456) 71 -
Finance {costyincome - - - 02) 02} -
Taxation (0 4) (26) - - (30} -
Profit of the year 428 51 18 (45 8) 39 -
Balance Sheet information
Total assets 1384 264 - - 164 8 -
Total habilities {60 2) {11 9) - - (72 1) -
Expenditure incurred to acquire
property, plant and equipment 17 20 - - 237 -

and intangtble assets
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4. Operating segments [continued)

o
Sports  Casino gaming Poker rake Totat
betting
tm tm fm tm
e

Amounts wagered 1,9202 482 217 1,9901

Promotional bonuses (112 (33 43 (188

Net Amounts Wagered 1,9090 449 174 1,971 3

Gaming Revenue 156 4 48 2 217 2263

Promotionat bonuses (112 (33) {43 (18 8}

Net Gaming Revenue 1452 449 174 2075

2009
Europe Australta Emerging Unzliocated Continuing Discontinued
Markets central costs gperations  operations Total
Total
fm tm fm fm fm fm
/]
Amounts wagered 9387 6105 280 - 1,577 2 141
Net gaming revenue 1394 208 34 - 1636 21
Depreciation and amortisation

af software 75 08 - o4 (85) (02
Administrative expenses excluding

exceptional items, share option (95 4) (14 6) (3 3) {(107) {124 0} (34)

charge and other amortisation

Group operating profit before
exceptional items, share option 365 56 01 (a1mn 311 (15)
charge and other amortisation

Other administrative expenses

Exceptional items (42) - - - 42 -
Share option charge (15) (0 6) - (10 310 -
QOther amaortisation (1 9) - - - {19) -
Total administrative expenses (110 5) 15 8) 33 (12 1) [QEA )] (3 6)
Operating profit / {loss) 289 50 01 (12 1) 219 (15)
Finance (cost) / ncome - - - o4 04 -
Taxation 10 (15) - - (0 5) -
Profit of the year 299 35 01 (11 7) 218 (15
Balance Sheet information
Total assets 1148 2490 - - 1388 -
Total habilities {36 5} 90 - - 45 5) -
Expenditure incurred to acquire
property, plant and equipment i17 10 - - 127 -

and intangible assets

For segmental information by product, revenue 1s attnbuted to three principal products sports betting, casino gaming and poker
Segment assets and capital expenditure cannot be allocated to prinapal products




4 Operating segments (continued)

2009
Sports Castno Paoker rake Totat
betting gaming
{m fm tm fm
. ]
Amounts wagered 1,529 6 437 220 1,595 3
Promaotional bonuses {12 5) (2 4) (32) (18 1)
Net amounts wagered 1,517 1 413 188 1,577 2
Gaming revenue 1160 437 220 1817
Promothional bonuses (125) (2 4) (32) (18 1)
Net garming revenue 1035 413 i88 1636
5. Exceptional items
Notes 2010 009
fm tm
. ________________________________________________________]
Department of Justice settlement (a) 228 -
Move to the main market (b) 17 -
Provision against monies due from payment
) - 42
processing prowvider
245 472

(a) The agreed settlement payment to the United States Department of Justice in respect of the US facing element of the Group’s business
operating prior to the implementation of the Unlawful Gambling Enforcement Act {(*UIGEA™) In return, the US Federal Government will not seek
1o prosecute the Group wath regard to its former actions in the US

{b) The costs related to transferring the listing of the Group's entire 1ssued share capital from AIM to a premium listng on the Official List of the
UK Listing Authonty ("Ofhcal List™)

{¢) Provision against montes due from one of the Groups European payment processing providers, where the amount owed by the third party
15 in dispute and 1ts recoverability is not sufficently clear
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6. Profit before taxation

Group operating profit before exceptional items, share option charge and amortisation has been arrved at after charging/{crediting)

2010 2009
fm fm
e - ]
Net foreign exchange losses (1.9) {10)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 54 47
Amortisation of software 57 40
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services 01 01
Audit of subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation 03 06
Tax services 01 03
Transaction support senaces 04 -
7. Share option charge
2010 2009
fm £m
e ]
Share opton charge 1 31
Social security costs on share options 09 -
20 31




8. Staff costs

2010 2009
No. No
- - - ]
The average monthly number of employees
(including Executive Directors) was

Europe 468 419
Australia 103 87
571 506

2010 2009

fm fm

re————— -
Employee costs (including Executive Directors)
were as follows

Wages and salanes 357 299
Socal secunty costs EX ] 28
Pensions costs 15 13

410 340

The followang table sets out Directors’ remuneration There are no key management personnel other than the Group's Directors

2010 2009

€m fm
e ]
Directors’ remuneration

Salary and fees 14 12
Bonuses 11 06
Share based payments 28 09
Total emoluments 53 27
Pension contnbutions 01 01

54 28

Further disclosures on the remuneration of each indmmdual Director are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 56

9. Net finance (costs)/income

2010 009
fm fm

eeeEEe———— e e - |
Bank loans and overdrafts (05) 03
Finance lease interest {0.1) -
(0.6} (03}
Interest recevable 04 07

(02) 04
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10. Taxation

The tax charge for the year 15 hugher than the standard UK rate of corporation tax as explained below

2010 2009
fm fm

Note 10(a) Analysis of charge in the penod

Current tax

UK corporation tax on losses of the penod - -
Qverseas taxation 30 24
Adjustments to overseas taxation in respect of previous penods 06 (12}
Total current tax 36 12
Deferred tax

Current year movement to deferred tax (06) e
Total deferred tax (note 10(c)) (06) 07)
Tax on profit an ordinary activities {note 10(b)) 30 05

Note 10(b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the penod
Profit an ordinary activities before tax 69 223
Profit on ordinary actvities multiplied by the standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK 28% (2009 28%) 19 62
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 104 13
Effect of lower tax rates on overseas earnings {10 6) {69
Tax losses arnsing in year 13 09
Other timing differences (14) 02
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods (0 6) 12
Tax charge for the period (note 10(a)} 30 as
Note 10{c) Provision for deferred tax (deferred tax asset)
QOther uming differences {06) 07
Provision for deferred 1ax at 28% (2009 28%) {06) 07)
As at the beginning of the year (148) on
Current year movement (06) eon
As at the end of the year (deferred tax asset} (20) (14

UK deferred tax assets in respect of accelerated capital allowances £Q 9m and tax losses £12 8m have not been recogrnised on the basis that
1t is not probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit in future years aganst which the assets can be recovered
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11. Earnings per share

Continuing  Discontinued 2010 Continuing Discontinued 2009
2010 2010 Total 00 2009 Total

Profit/(Loss) per ordinary share
Basic 0 8p - 0.8p 46p (2 Op) 26p
Diluted 07p - 07p 42p (1 8p) 24p

Adjusted earmings per ordinary share

(before exceptional tems, share

option charge and amortisation)

Basic 6 5p - 6 5p 65p {0 3p) 62p
Oiluted 6.2p - 62p 60p {0 3p S7p

The calculation of basic earmings per share 1s based on the profit/{loss) on ordinary activities after taxation attnbutable to shareholders
of Sportingbet Plc and the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue dunng the year

Due to the size of non-cash items the Group has adjusted its earmings per ordinary share to exclude exceptional items,
share option charge and amortisation

Continuing  Drscontinued Total Continuing Discontinyed Total

2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 1009

fm £m £m £m tm tm
|
Basic earnings 39 - 39 218 (94) 124
Exceptional tems 245 - 245 42 - 42

Share option charge 20 - 20 31 - 31
Amortisation 1.8 - 18 19 - 19
Adjusted earmings 322 - 322 310 (9 4) 2186

During the year the Group had the following weighted average number of shares in 1ssue and potentally diutive shares

2010 2009
No. No

- - " "> ]
Weighted average number of shares in issue 496,107,615 477,099,664
Employee share schemes 19,181,226 39,630,748

Contingent censideration - -

Fully diluted number of weighted average

number of shares in 1ssue 515.288,841 516 730412
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11. Earnings per share (continued)

As at 371 July 2010 the Group had the following shares in issue and potentially dilutive shares

201¢ 2009
No Ne
[FRRAPERRE R e e e T e PR AR e
Number of shares In 1ssue 502,038,144 483,987,106
Employee share schemes 19,181,226 39,630,748
Fully dituted number of shares inissue 521,219,370 523,617,854
12. Goodwill
tm
[ e e e e T SR R T R
Cost
As at 1 August 2008 25486
Additions -
Dispesals (6 4
Exchange movements 01
Other movements (5 S}
As at 1 August 2009 2428
Additions -
Disposals -
Exchange movements 04
As at 31 July 2010 243 2
Impairment losses
As at 1 August 2008 2016
As at 1 August 2009 2016
Exchange movements 01
As at 31 July 2010 2017
Net book value
As at 31 July 2010 415
As at 31 July 2009 412

Disposals relate to the sale of Sporungbet Itaha S p.A. as descnbed in Note 2
The other movernents arose as a result of changes in the underiying value of the amount payable to sausfy the contingent consideration




12. Goodwill (continued)

Subsequent to the annual iImpairment test far 2010, the carrying amount of goodwaill is allocated 1o the following cash generating units

2010 1009
£m fm

R e  — — — — -]
Europe 178 178
Australta 237 234
415 412

The recoverable amounts for the cash generating units above are determined based on internal discounted cash fiow evaluation The cash flow
evaluation Is based on actual operating results and five year forecasts at the growth rates stated in the key assumptions

Management constder the key assumptions to be the selection of growth and discount rates

Discount rates for the goodwill impairment review are based on company specific pre-tax weighted average cost of capital percentages and
range from 10% to 15%, based on management's assessment of comparable companies in the sector The future cash flows are modelled based
on budgeted projections and cash flows beyond the budget penod are extrapolated using a growth rate of 1% The growth rate applied 15
based on past expenence Future cash flows are projected assuming no changes to the currenit regulatory ervronment

13. Other intangible assets

Software Other Total
fm fm tm
e ___________________________________________|
Cost
As at 1 August 2008 168 139 307
Additions 66 - 66
As at 1 August 2009 234 139 373
Additions 133 - 133
Disposals 07 - (07)
Exchange movements - 0t 01
As at 31 July 2010 360 140 500
Amortisation and imparrment losses
As at 1 August 2008 98 57 155
Charge for the year 40 19 59
As at 1 August 2009 138 76 214
Charge for the year 57 18 75
Disposals (06) - (06)
Exchange movements (02) 01 (© 1)
As at 31 July 2010 187 95 282
Net book value
As at 31 July 2010 173 45 218
As at 31 July 2009 96 63 159

The £14 Om of Other Intangible costs includes £5 3m capitalisation of the Superbahis URL and contract, and £8 7m relating to the
Belmend international Lirmited marketing contract

Amortisaton of Saftware 15 charged to administratve expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement Other amorbisation and impairment losses
are charged to other amortisation waithun other administrative expenses
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14. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures, fittings Mator vehicles Computer Freeheld land and Total
and equipment equipment Buildings
fm fm fm {m fm
- -~ - ]
Cost
As at 1 August 2008 66 01 169 96 362
Additions 04 - 26 31 61
Disposals 02 - (73) - (75)
Exchange movements (08) - 02 - (06)
As at 1 August 2009 60 01 154 127 342
Additions 14 01 75 14 104
Disposals 02) - (V)] - (0 9)
Exchange movements 01 - 02 - 03
As at 31 July 2010 73 02 224 141 44 0
Depreciation
As at 1 August 2008 36 01 13 01 151
Charge for the year 06 - 35 06 47
Disposals (04) - 63 - 67
Exchange adjustments (0 8) - - - © 8
As at 1 August 2009 30 01 85 07 123
Charge for the year 11 - 39 04 54
Disposals (02) - {08 - (08)
Exchange adjustments - - - , .
As at 31 July 2010 39 01 118 11 169
Net hook value
As at 31 July 2010 14 01 106 130 271
As at 31 July 2009 30 - 69 120 219

The net book value of assets held under finance leases amounts t6 £1 9m {2009 £nil)




15. Trade and other receivables

2010 2009
fm tm
e
Trade recevables 90 61
Prowision for impairment of trade recevables (49) (24)
Trade recevables, net 41 37
QOther recevables 32 62
Prepayments and accrued income 53 35
126 134

Trade receivables that are less than 30 days past due are not considered impaired As of 31 uly 2010, trade receivables of £4 1m (2009 £3 7m)
were past due but not imparred These relate 1o a number of independent customers for whom there I1s no recent history of default

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows

2010 2009
£m fm
R A A e
Up to 2 months past due 36 30
2 to 6 months past due 01 01
Over 6 months past due 04 06
41 37
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade recevables are denominated entirely in Australian dollars
Movements on the Group provision for iImpairment of trade recewvables are as follows
2010 2009
£m fm
[ o
As at 1 August 24 19
Prowision for recevables impairment 32 P2
Recelvables written off dunng the year as uncollectable {on o7
As at 31 July 49 24

The creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been included in "adminsstrative expenses” in the Income Statement
Amaunts charged to the allowance account are generally wntten off when there 1s no expectation of recovering addimonal cash

The other classes within trade and other recenvables do not contain impaired assets

Trade recevables are usually due within 30 days and do not bear any effective interest rate All trade recevables are subject to credit nsk exposure
however the Group does not identify specific concentration of credit nsk wath regards to trade recenables, as the amount recognised consists of
a large number of recewvables from vanous customers

The tar value of these short term financial assets 1s not indvidually determined as the carrying amount 15 a reasonable approximation of fair value
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14. Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009
tm fm
|
Cash 423 301
Short term cash deposits 165 141
Restricted cash 01 01
589 443
Restncted cash includes £0 1m (2009 £0 1m) held in designated accounts which have certain restrictions
Short term cash deposits consist of balances held by payment service prowiders
17. Trade and other payables
Current Liabiliies 2010 7009
fm {m
L. _______________________________________________________________]
Bank loans 40 40
Finance lease 1.3 -
Trade payables 6.8 53
Other payables 38 55
Customer liabilrbes 162 148
Tax and social security 15 17
Accruals and deferred income 241 120
Contingent consideration - 05
Open bets 20 17
597 455
Non -current liabilties 2010 2009
£m fm
]
Accruals and deferred income 16 -
16 -

Included within accruals and deferred income 1s £22 8m owed in respect of the agreed Department of Justice settlement as referred to in note 5
This 1s spht between £11 2m payable in less than one year and £11 6m payable after more than one year in two separate installments to the
Southern District of New York with the final settlement date 31 March 2012

Contingent consideration of £ml (2009 £0 5m} s owed in respect of the acquisition of the business and assets of Mashn Properties Limited

Although repayable an demand, the Group has a bank loan of £4 Om which 1s available up to 2012 The Directors do not antiapate early
repayment The loan 1s secured by a floating charge cver the assets of the Group, and bears an mnterest rate of 1 5% above LBOR

The open bets at the year end are within the scope of 1AS 39 as derivative contracts These bets are held at far value with significant gains
and losses recogrised in revenue Management's assessments of the exposure to significant changes in fair value of open bets 15 assessed as
neghgible due to the short term exposures to such abilities and the minimal movement on average betting odds between the date of bet
placing and the penod end




18. Provisions

£m
. ________________________________________________________________________________________________|
As at 1 August 2008 01
Amounts Incurred and charged agamst the provision -
As at 1 August 2009 01
Amounts incurred and charged agamnst the provision on
As at 31 July 2010 -
Inclueded in current habiities -
included in non-current liabilities -
The chargeback provision provided for future chargebacks on customer deposits has now been released
19. Leases
a) Obligations under finance leases
2010 009
fm tm

5|
Minimum lease payments

Within 1 year 12 -
within 2-5 years inclusive 13 -
25 -

Less future finance charges - -
Present value of lease obhigations 25 -
2010 2009

£m fm

- - ]
Present value of minimum lease payments

Within 1 year 12 -
Within 2-5 years inclusive 13 -
25 -
Accounts due for settlement withen 1 year 12 -
Accounts due for settlement after more than 1 year 13 -
25 -

The Group has entered into a senes of transactions denominated in sterling and commenaing in September 2009 to finance, through the lease
amrangements shown above, the purchase of computer hardware and other assoaated assets The intial lease term for all these assets was three
years and the average life outstanding was two years two months as at 31 July 2010 The average effectve borrowng rate at that date was 1 9%
and the interest rates that apply are fixed at the contract date The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates thewr carrying amount
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charges over the leased assets themselves as well as fixed and floating
charges over Sportingbet Plc and three of the Group s subsidianes

i
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b) Commitments under operating leases

The minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of Jand and buildings that have been recognised as an expense for the penod

2010 2009
fm tm
- |
Minmum lease payrments 18 17
The Group had outstanding commutments for the future mimmum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
2010 2009
£m £m
-
Within 1 year 13 16
within 2-5 years inclusive 27 17
In more than 5 years 28 06
68 39

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for office property costs

20. Financial instruments

The Group uses finanaal instruments, comprising cash and cash equivalents, short term borrowings and trade recevables,
which anse directly from 1ts operations

Short term receivables
The Group's trade and other recevables are actively monitored to aveid significant concentrations of credit nisk

Denvative instruments
The Group takes out forward currency contracts in Euro and Austrahian dollars Hedge accounting 1s applied to certain denvative
Instruments as set out below

Interest rate nsk
The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits and bank facilities Bank borrowings are made using
variable interest rates The interest rate nisk on the Group's £4 Om bank loan 1s not considerad to be significant

Liguidity nsk
The Group seeks to manage financial risk, to ensure sufficent hquidity 15 available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash
assets safely and profitably

Suffioent cash reserves are held to mamntam short-term flexitility, together with short-term borrowings
The following table details the contractual matunity analysis of the Group’s financal kabilities




20. Financial instruments [continued)

31 July 2010
1 year 2-hyears 5 years Total
or less and gver
fm £m fm im

e
Finanaal habilrttes

Trade payables 121 - - 121
Customer liabilities 162 - - 16 2
Bank loans 40 - - 40
Finance leases 12 13 - 25
Sports betting open positions 20 - - 20
Total 358 13 - 368

Customer habilities represent cash held by the group on behalf of customers net of an allowance for uncollected balances In the event that
the level of balances reclaimed exceeds management’s expectation, the gross cash outflow could be higher

The maturity analysis in respect of sports betting open positions reflects the farr value of the hability position at the balance sheet date
In the event that the outcome of bets adversely affected the business, the gross cash outflow could be higher

31 Juty 2009
1 year -5 years 5 years Total
or less and over
fm fm fm m

- _""— - - ]
Finanaial iabilities

Trade payables 17 - - 1n7
Customer habilities 148 - - 148
Bank loans 40 - - 40
Sports betting open positions 17 - - 17
Total 322 - - 322
Credit risk

As explained in the financial review, the Group recharges iis credit nsk, ansing from credit facilities allowed to certain customers in the
Australian region, by making appropriate credit checks before bets are placed and setung credit imits based on this information

Currency nsk
The Group's activitres expese 1t to the finanaal nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, a significant proportion of its Incoma 15
denived from foreign currencies whilst the majonty of 1ts costs are in Sterling

The Group maintained 1ts proactive position and continued to hedge foreign currency sales with forward contracts for up to one year, purchasing
currencres to cover 80% of its exposure one quarter ahead, 70% two quarters ahead, 60% three quarters ahead and 50% four quarters ahead
This policy 15 approved by the Board and the Board receves updates on a regular basis in respect of the hedging position

The Group's denvative transactions compnise currency forward contracts During the year the Group entered into a number of forward contracts
with terms of between 1 and 12 months

The Group applies hedge accounting to its forward contracts which prowide a cash flow hedge against spot rate foreign currency volatihty
over highly probable forecast Euro sales

Amounts inttially taken 1o other comprehensive income under designated cash flow hedges totalled a gan of £0 3m (2009 £1 2m) of
which a £0 3m loss (2009 £0 5m gain) has been reclassified to the iIncome statement on the completion of designated hedge relationships
Hedges continue to be highly effective

The tables below show the extent to which Group companies have monetary assets and babilites in currencies other than their local currency
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

Net forergn currency monetary assets

Functienal currency of operation Euro US dollars Brantian Other Total
Real currencies
tm tm £m im tm
]
2010
Sterling 162 19 33 48 362
162 19 33 48 362
2009
Sterling 124 30 09 148 311
124 30 09 148 311

Carrying values
The carmyng amounts of the Group's finanaal mstruments are setout below As these finanoa! instruments are not publicly traded, the fair values

presented are determined by calculating present values of the cash flows antiopated untl matunty of these financiat assets

Assess at fair value through
the Income Statement Laans and recervables
2010 7009 2010 2009
fm tm im tm

Financial assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other recavables - - 73 99
Cash and cash eguivalents - - 58.9 44 3
Denvatves 13 07 - -

13 07 662 542

Liabiities at farr value through
the Income Statement
2010 2009 2010 2009
fm £m £m tm
]

Financial habilities as per balance sheet
Trade and other payables 20 17 26.8 256
Interest beanng loans and borrowangs - - 4.0 40

2.0 17 308 296

Financrat liabilities at amarbised cost
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency sensruvity
Sportingbet Pl 1s exposed to market nisk through ts use of financizl instruments and speafically to currency nsk

Exposures to currency exchange rates anse from the Group’s retranslation of its forergn subsidiznies as well as the Group's overseas sales
and purchases, which are primarily denomtnated in Euros and Turkish Lira

The followng table tllustrates the sensitvity of the net result for the year and equity with regard to the Group’s finanaal assets and finanaa! habilives
and the Euro/Steriing exchange rate and Turkish Lira/Sterling rate It assumes a +/~ 0 2% movement in the Stering/Euro exchange rate for the year
ended 31 July 2010 {2009 0 5%} and a +/- 0 5% movement for the Sterling/Turkish Lira exchange rate (2009 0 4%)

These percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates in the previous 12 months

If Sterling had strengthened agamnst the Euro and Turkish Lira by 0 2% (2009 0 5%) and 0 5% (2009 0 4%) respectively then this would
have had the followang impact

2010 2009
Euro Turtash Lira Total Euro Turkish Lira Total
fm fm £m fm tm tm
|
Net profit {0.1) o1 (0 2) 02) ©on ()
Equity {0.9) ©1 (02} o1 o1 02 |

if Stering had weakened against the Euro and Turkish Lira by 0 2% (2009 0 5%} and 0 5% (2009 0 4%) respectively then this would have had '
the following impact

2010 2009
Eure  Turkish Lira Total Furo Turkish Lira Tatal
£m £m fm fm fm fm
]
Net profit 01 01 02 02 01 03
Equity 01 01 02 01 o1 02

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions Nonetheless, the analysis above
15 considered 10 be representative of the Group’s exposure to currency nsk

Caprtal management

In common with many internet companies that have few physical assets, the Group has no policy as to the leve! of equity capital and reserves
other than to address statutory requirements As at 31 July 2010, the Group had £4 Om (2009 £4 0m) of bank loans which are secured on the
Group's land and buildings Details of the Group’s dwvidend policy are disclosed on page 69 of this Annual Report

21. Share capital

2010 2009
1800 £800
R e e e e e e —— - ]
Authonsed
1,000m (2009 1,000m) ordinary shares of 0 1p each 1,000 1,000
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
As at 31 July 2009 483,987,106 shares of ¢ 1p each 484 472
Issues in respect of acquisiions nil shares - 7
Other share 15sues in respect of exercised share options 18,051,038 shares 18 5

As at 31 July 2010 502,038,144 shares of 0 1p each 502 484
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21. Share capital [continued)

At 31 July 2010 the following share options were outstanding in respect of ordinary shares

Date of grant Ordtnary shares of 0 1p Period of aption ~ Exercise price
p)

December 2003 1,115,000 December 2006 - Decernber 2010 395
January 2004 539,375 January 2007 - January 2011 49
February 2004 100,000 February 2007 - January 2011 395
May 2004 50 000 May 2007 - May 2011 84
Qctober 2004 100,000 Qctober 2007 - October 2011 975
November 2004 95,000 November 2007 — November 2014 131
August 2005 22,250 July 2007 - July 2008 -
June 2008 1,626,801 November 2009 — November 2011 -
lanuary 2009 14,829,466 November 2010 - November 2012 -
August 2009 703,334 November 2010 - Novermber 2012 -

At 31 July 2010 there were 19,181,226 options or awards over ordinary shares cutstanding, 3,037,326 of which relate to Directors, detalls of
which can be found in the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 56

Of the share options detalled above 784,375 relate to the Executive Scheme, 1,215,000 relate to the Unapproved Scheme, 22,250 relate to the
2005 plan, 1,626,801 relate to the 2006 Share Plan, and 15,532,800 relate to the 2008 restncted share plan

22. Share based payments

The Company operates five equity-settled share-based remuneration schemes for employees across the Group, as hsted in Note 21 All employees
are eligible to partiaipate in these schemes, the vesting conditions being that the indmidual still remains in employment at the date of the release
of the option and in respect of the 2005 and 2006 share plans satisfies certain perfarmance criteria The terms of these schemes are discussed in
more detail In the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 56

2010 2009

Weighted average No Weighted average No

exercise price EXErCISe pivce

(p) fp]

-~ "~ - |

Qutstanding at the beginming of the year 25 39,630,748 27 38,686,357
Granted during the year - 703,334 - 17,416,122
Forfeited dunng the year - (250,000) - (66.667)
Exercaised during the year 21 (18,158,451) - {13,789,763)
Lapsed during the year 67 (2,744,405) 14 (2,615,301)
Qutstanding at the end of the year 23 19,181,226 25 39,630,748
Exeraisable at the end of the year 501 2,021,625 526 3,235,625

The exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year ranged between Op and 131p {2009 Op and 131p) and their weighted average
contraciual life was 675 days (2009 596 days)

Of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the year, 2,021,625 had vested and were exercisable, (2009 3,235,625)
The weighted average share price (at the date of exercse) of options exeraised dunng the year was 74 4p (2009 27 9p)
The weighted average farr value of each cption granted dunng the year was 56 3p (2009 33 4p)

The following information 1s relevant i the determunation of the fair value of options granted dunng the year under the equity-and cash-settled
share-based remuneration schemes aperated by Sportingbet Plc




2010 2009
fm tm
.- - - |

Equity-settled

Options pnang model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

Weighted average share price at grant date (pence) 59 75p 3517p

Exercise price (pence) ml nil

Weighted average contractual life {(days) 830 1,208
Equity-settled

Expected volatibity 50% 50%

Expected dwidend growth rate 2% 2%

Risk-free interest rate 5% 5%

The volatlity assumption, measured at the standard deviation of expected share pnice returns, 15 based on a statistical analysis of daily share
prices over the last three years

2010 2009
fm tm

]
The share-based remuneration expense comprises

Equity-settled schemes 11 31

23. Contingencies

{a) From time to time the Group 1s subject to legal daims and actions The Group takes legal adwvice as to the likelhood of success of the dlaims and
actions and no provision or disclosure 1s made where the Directors feel, based on that adwvice, that action 1s unhikely to result in a matenal toss or a
sufficently reliable estimate of the potential obligation cannot be made

As part of the ongoing operational nsk assessment process adopted by the Group, there 1s continued monrtoring of the legal and regulatory
developments and ther potential impact on the business Appropriate advice continues to be taken in respect of these developments

As noted within the Regulatory Developments section (pages 57 to 59) there have been certain adverse regulatory developments within Turkey
and parts of Eurcpe

There 15 uncertanty as to what actsons, if any, may occur from the above noted events and any impact such actton may have on the Group
However, the Board does not consider it probable that a matenal hability or a matenal impairment in the carrying value of assets will anse as a
result of any potential action

(b) The Group has been paying taxes in the form of praduct fees to vanous states of Australia to the three racing codes The Group’s management
believes the legal bases of these taxes is flawed and have been making payments under protest The Group has paid A$6 7m to the state of New
South Wales, which may be recoverable if legal action 1s successful

{©) The business 1s situated, operated and managed from Guernsey through an Alderney registered company The main business of the Group
was mitigated to this company from the UK during the year ended 31 July 2007 HMRC have not yet given formal dearance that they accept
the business has moved offshore If HMRC were to successfully contend that the Group has not moved its operations offshore then there may
be a matenal adverse effect on the amount of tax payable by the Group for the penod since 31 July 2007 In addition the Group may be hable
to a daim for additional employment taxes If the Group’s interpretation of certain contracts 1s found to be incarrect

24, Related parties
The Group makes contributions into an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT ") as part of a cash based long term incenuve plan for certan key employees
A number of Directors are benefiganes of the EBT into which contnbutions of £0 4m were made in 2010 (2009 £0 6m)

N Payne (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director) provided financial consultancy services to the Graup amounting to £20,000 (2009 £nil)
via Merlin Finance Adwvisors LLP

S O'Connor (Semor Independent Non-Executive Director) pronded marketing consultancy services to the Group amounting to £19,800 (2009
£nil), via The Sean O Connor Consultancy Limited
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Parent Company Independent Auditor's Report

independent auditor’'s repart to the members of Sportingbet Pic

We have audited the Parent Company Financial Siatements of
Sportingbet Plc for the year ended 31 July 2010 which compnse the
Parent Company Balance Sheet and the related notes The finanqial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This repart 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
n &n auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained maore fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the Parent
Company Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they
give & true and farr view Our responsibility 1s to audit the Parent
Company Ftnancial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
(APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements
A description of the scope of an audit of Financial Statements ts
provided on the APB's website at waww frc org uk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinion on finanaal statements
In our opinion the Parent Company Financial Statements

« give atrue and far iew of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at 31 fuly 2010,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinien

e the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared \n accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

» the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with
the Parent Company Finanaal Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where
the Companies Act 2006 requeres us to report 1o you if, In our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not wisited by us, or

« the Parent Company Financial Statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
Iaw are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group Financial Statements

of Sportingbet Plc for the yearended 31 July 20

Paul Ethenngton BSc FSA CF

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutery Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

5 October 2010




Parent Company Balance Sheet

As at 31 July 2009 Notes 010 2009
fm fm
e e
Fixed assets
Investments 4 B8 3 463
g8 3 463
Current assets
Debtors 5 793 256
Cash at bank and in hand 6 . 12
793 268
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 7 (16 9) 63
Net current assets 624 205
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 7 {11 6) -
Net assets 1391 668
Shareholders’ funds
Issued share capital 8 05 05
Share premium 9 588 58 3
Retained earnings 9 798 80
Equrty shareholders’ funds 1391 668

The Notes on pages 94 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements These Financial Statements were approved by the Board and authonsed
for 1ssue on 5th October 2010

A Mclver
Director

1044
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Parent company accounting policies

The Finanaat Statements for the Company have been prepared in
accordance with UK law and applrcable UK GAAP accounting standards

The principal accountng policies are summarnsed below They have
all been applied consistently throughout the financial year and the
preceding year

The following pnincipal accounting policies have been appled

Exemptions

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under
secton 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not presented a profit and
loss for the Company alone

Valuation of investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any prowistan
for impairment

Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases and other similar contracts, which
confer nghts and obligations simular to those attached to owned assets,
are caprtalised as tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and their useful lives The capital elements

of future lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest
elements are charged to the profit and loss account over the penod

of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of
capital repayments outstanding Hire purchase transactions are dealt
with similarly, except that assets are depreciated over their useful lives

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis

over the lease term, even If the payments are not made on such a basis
Benefits received and recevable as an incentive to sign an operating
lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where the penod to the review date on which the rent s first
expected to be adjusted to the prevaling market rate 15 shorter than
the full lease term, in which case the shorter penod is used

Pension costs

For defined contrbution schemes the amount charged to the profit
and loss account in respect of pension costs and other post-retrement
benefiis i1s the contnbutions payable in the penod Differences between
contrbutions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are
shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet

Share based employee remuneration

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the
opticns at the date of grant is charged to the profit and loss account
over the vesting penod

Where share options are granted to employees of subsidiary
undertakings, the farr value of the options 1s added to the cost of
investment in these subsidiary undertakings over the vesting pernod

Non-market vesting conditions are iaken inte account by adjusung the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet
date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the
vesting perod 1s based on the number of options that eventually vest
Markei vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options
granted As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge

1s made irrespective of whether the market vesting condiions are
satisfied The cumulative expense 15 not adjusted for fatlure to achieve
a market vesting condition

Where the terms of the optians are modified before they vest, the
increase in the fair value of the options, measured smmediately before
and after the modification, 1s also charged to the profit and loss
account over the remaining vesting period

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees, the profit and loss account 1s charged with the fair value
of goods and services received

Further descriptions of the Group’s share-based payment plans are
given in note 22 of the Group Finanaal Statements

Finanaal habilities and equity

Financial habiities and equity are classified according to the substance
of the finanoial instrument’s contractual obligations, rather than the
financial instrument’s legal form

2. Profit after tax

Company profit after tax for the year amounted to £78 8m Audit fees
for the Company were barne by other members of the group and are
disclosed in the notes to the consclidated Finanaal Statements




3. Staff costs

2010 2009

fm fm
|

Employee costs induding Directors were as follows

Wages and salanies 32 26
Socal secunty costs 04 03
Penstons costs 02 02

38 31

During the year 14 employees were employed by the Company (2009 6)

There were 2 {2009 2) Directors in the Company’s defined contribution pension scheme Further disclosures on the remuneration of each
individual Director are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 56

4, Investments

Shares m subsidiary undertakings

Em
]

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

As at 1 August 2009 463
Acguisitions 413
Options 1ssued to employees of subsidiary undertakings 07
As at 31 July 2010 883

Duning the year the Group underwent a reorganisation of subsidianes in order to meet management objectives and in dong so resulted in the
Company acquiring £41 3m (2009 £nil) in subsidiary undertakings durning the year These objectives induded the creation of a pool of reserves wath the
Company that is sufficient to meet short to medwm term external dvidend requirements and to simplify inter-company balances wathin the Group

The following prinapal subsidianes were wholly owned at 31 July 2010

Actwty Country of incorporation or registration
I
Interactive Sports {Cl) Limited Online betting Alderney
Interactive Sports Lirited Online betung England
Sportingbet Australia Pty Limited Online and telephone betting Austraha
Internet Opportunity Entertainment (Sports) Online betting Antigua & Barbuda

umited

Platinum Management Adwisors S A Administrative sennces Costa Rica
Sporuing Cdds Lmited Online betung England
MLB Limited Contract Call Centre Ireland
Anfield Group Lmited Investment holding company BVI
SB Properties {Guernsey) Limited Investment property holding company Guernsey
Sportngbet (Management Serces) Limited Administrative services England
Sportingbet {IT Services) Lmited Software development and IT related services England
sportingbet (Product Services) bimited Market research, project management and websgrewsucc_i: England
Sportingbet Holdings Limited Group Holdings Company England
Spread Your Wings Limited Online Bettng Malta
SBT Software operations (SA) (PTY) Limited Online Betng South Africa

For all undertakings listed previously, the country of incorporation is the same as the country of operation
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5. Debtors
2010 2009
fm tm
._______________________________________________________________________________________ |
Other debtors o7 03
Prepayments and accrued imcome 1.4 11
Owed by subsidiary undertakings 772 242 |
793 256

The Company has agreed 1o provide its subsidiary undertakings with such financial support as Is necessary to enable the subsidianes to continue
to trade and meet their obligations to third party creditors as and when they fall due

6. Cash at bank and in hand

2010 2009
£m fm
. ___ |
Cash - 12
- 12
7. Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year

2010 009
1)) £m
""" =
Bank loans 40 40
Accruals and deferred income 125 19
Due to subsidiary undertakings 04 04
169 63 |
Amounts falling due after more than one year !
2010 2009
£m tm
. ______________________________________________________________________________ |
Accruals and deferred income 116 -

116 -




8 Share capital

97

010 009
£oo0 £000
e -}
Authonsed
1,000m (2009 1,000m) ordinary shares of 0 1p each 1,000 1,000
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
As at 31 July 2009 483,987,106 shares of 0 1p each 484 472
Issues in respect of acquisitions nil shares - 7
Issues In respect of exercised share options 18,051,038 shares 18 5
As at 31 July 2010 502,038,144 shares of 0 1p each 502 484
At 31 July 2010 the following share options were outstanding in respect of ordinary shares
Date of grant Ordinary shares of 0 1p Period of option  Exercise price
(p)
December 2003 1,115,000 December 2006 — December 2010 395
January 2004 539,375 January 2007 - January 2011 a9
February 2004 100,000 February 2007 — January 2011 395
May 2004 50,000 May 2007 - May 2011 94
October 2004 100,000 October 2007 — October 2011 975
November 2004 95,000 November 2007 — November 2014 13
August 2005 22,250 July 2007 - July 2008 -
June 2008 1,626,801 November 2009 — November 2011 -
January 2009 14,829,466 November 2010 - November 2012 -
August 2009 703,334 November 2010 - November 2012 -

At 31 July 2010 there were 19,181,226 aptions or awards over ordinary shares outstanding, 3,037,326 of which relate to Directars, details of

which can be found in the Rernuneration Report on pages 52 to 56

Of the share options detalled above 784,375 relate to the Executive Scheme, 1,215,000 relate to the Unapproved Scheme, 22,250 relate to the
2005 plan, 1,626,801 relate to the 2006 Share Plan, and 15,532,800 relate to the 2009 restricted share plan

9. Reserves
Share premium account Profit and loss account
fm £m
]
As at 1 August 2009 583 80
Employee share options 05 06)
Share option charge - 11
Dmdends - 795
Profit for the year - 788
As at 31 July 2010 588 798

The movernent in Company shareholders’ funds of £72 3m (2009 £15 4m) 15 wholly represented by the moverments shown n reserves and share

capital vy Notes 9 and 8
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Notice of Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Sportingbet Pic (the " Compary™) will be held at 4th Floor 45 Moorfields,
London EC2Y 9AE on Fnday 17 December 20103t 1030am to
transact the following business

Resolutions 1 to 8 inclusive and 11 will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions Resolutions 9, 10, 12 and 13 will be proposed as
specal resolutions

Resolution 1
To recerve and adopt the accounts, the directors' report, and the auditor's
report on the finanaial staternents for the year ended 31 July 2010

Resolution 2
To receive and approve the directors' remuneration report for the
year ended 31 July 2010

Resolution 3
To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 July 2010 0f 1 1
pence (£0 011) per ordinary share

Resolution 4

To re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors to the Company

to hold office untit the conclusion of the next general meeung at which
accounts are laid before the Company

Resolution 5
To authonse the directors to set the auditors’' remuneration

Resolution 6
To re-elect Sean O'Connor as a director of the Company

Resolution 7
To re-elect Nigel Payne as a director of the Company

Resolution 8

That the directors be and they are hereby generally and uncondrucnally
authonsed in accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006
(the “2006 Act") in substtution for all existing autherities

s 1o exercse all the powers of the Company to allot shares and to
make offers or agreements to allot shares in the Company or grant
nghts to subscnbe for or to convert any security into shares in the
Company {together "Relevant Secunties”) up 1o an aggregate
nominal amouni of one hundred and sixty seven thousand, three
hundred and ninety three pounds (£167,393), and

¢ o exerase all the powers of the Company to allot equity securnities
{within the meaning of section 560 of the 2006 Act) up 1o an
additonal aggregate nominal amount of one hundred and
sixty seven thousand, three hundred and ninety three pounds
(£167,393) provided that this authonty may only be used in
connection wath a nights issue in favour of helders of ordinary
shares and other persons entitled to partiapate therein where
the equity secunties respectively attnbutable to the interests of all
those persons at such record dates as the directors may determine

are proporttonate (as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers
of equity secunties held or deemed to be held by them or are
otherwise allotted in accordance with the nghts attaching to such
equity secunties subject to such exdusions or other arrangements
as the directors may consider necessary or expedient to deal

wath fractional entitlements or legal difficulties under the laws of
any terntory or the requirements of a requlatory body or stock
exchange or by wirtue of shares being represented by depositary
receipts or any other matter whatsoever, provided that the
authonities in 8(i) and 8(in) shall expire at the condusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company after the passing of this
resolution or If earlier on the date which 1s 15 months after the
date of the annual general meeting, except that the Company may
before such expiry make an offer or agreement which wou'ld or
might reguire Relevant Secunities or equity securnities as the case
may be to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot
Relevant Secunties or equity secunties in pursuance of any such
offer or agreement as If the authonty in question had not expired

Resolution 9

That the directors be and are empowered, in accordance with section
570 of the 2006 Act, to allot equity securities (as defined in section
S60(1) of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant to the authornity conferred by
resolution number 8 or by way of a sale of treasury shares as if section
561(1) of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided
that this power shall be imited to

= the allotment of equity secunties in cannection with a rights
1ssue or other pro rata offer {but, in the case of the authanty
conferred by paragraph 8{n), by way of a nghts 15sue only) in
favour of holders of ordinary shares and other persons entitled
to participate therein where the equity securities respectwely
attributable to the interests of all those persons at such record
date as the direciors may determine are proportionate (as nearly
as may be) to the respective numbers of equity secunities held or
deemed to be held by them or are otherwise allotted in accordance
with the nghts attaching to such equity secunities subject in each
case to such exclusions ar other amangements as the directors
may consider necessary or expedient to deal with fracthional
entitlements or legal difficulties under the laws of any terntory
or the requirements of a regulatory body or stock exchange or
by wirtue of shares being represented by depositary receipts
or any ather matter whatsoever, and

= the allotment (ctherwise than pursuant to paragraph 9() above)
of equity secunties up to an aggregate nominal amount of twenty
five thousand, one hundred and nine pounds (£25,109), and shall
expire upon the expiry of the authonity conferred by resolution 8
above, except that the Company may make an offer or agreement
before this power expires which would or might require equity
secunities to be allotted and/or shares held by the Company in
treasury to be sold or transferred after such exprry and the directors
may allot equity securities and/or sell or transfer shares held by the
Company 1n treasury in pursuance of such offer or agreement as
if the power conferred by this resolution had not expired




Resolution 10

That the Company be and 1s hereby generally and uncondiionally
authonsed, in accordance with section 701 of the 2006 Act, to make
market purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the 2006
Act) of ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each in the capital of the Company
(*Ordinary Shares*) on such terms and in such manner as the directors
may from time to time determine provided that

* the maximum number of Ordinary Shares autharised 1o be
purchased 15 50,218,042 (representing approximately 10 per cent
of the Company's issued ordinary share capital at the date of this
notice of meeting),

» the mintmum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share s
0 1 pence (exclusive of expenses payable by the Company),

« the maxmum pnce which may be pard for an Ordinary Share
(exclusive of expenses payable by the Company) cannot be more
than the higher of

« 105 per cent of the average market value of an Ordinary
Share for the five business days prior to the day on which
the Qrdinary Share Is contracted to be purchased, and

» the value of an Ordinary Share calculated on the basis of
the hugher of

* the last iIndependent trade of, or

¢ the highest current independent bid for, any number
of Ordinary Shares on the trading venue where the
market purchase by the Company will be carned out,
and

» the authonty conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company except that the Company
may before such expiry make a contract to purchase its own shares
which will or may be completed or executed wholly or partly after
such expiry

Resolution 11

That in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the 2006 Act the
Company and all companies which are subsidiaries of the Company
during the penod when this resolution 11 has effect are autharised to

1 make political donations to political parties or independent
election candidates, as defined in the 2006 Act, not exceeding
one hundred thousand pounds (£100,000) In total,

2 make political donations to political organuisations other than
political parties, as defined in the 2006 Act, not exceeding one
hundred thousand pounds (£100,000) in total, and

3 ncur political expenditure, as defined in the 2006 Act, not
exceeding one hundred thousand pounds (£100,000) in total,

during that period beginming with the date of the passing of this
resolution and ending on the condusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company provided that the authonsed sums referred
to in paragraphs 114), 11(u) and 11(u) above may be compnsed of one
or more amounts in different currencies which, for the purposes of
calculating the said sums, shall be converted into pounds sterling at the
exchange rate publshed in the London edition of the Financial Times
on the date on which the relevant donation 1s made or expenditure
incurred (or the first business day thereafter), or, If earlier, on the day
on which the Company enters into any contract or undertaking in
relating to the same

Resolution 12

That the Company s authonised to call any general meeting of the
Company other than the annual general meeting by notice of at least
14 clear days during the penod beginning on the date of the passing
of this resolution and ending on the condusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company

Resolution 13
That

1 the articles of association of the Company be amended by daleting
all of the prowisions of the Company's memorandum of associauon
which, by virtue of section 28 of the Companies Act 2006, are to be
treated as provisions of the Company's articles of assooation, and

2 the articles of assocation produced to the meeting and inbialled
by the chairman of the meeting for the purpose of idendfication
be adopted as the articles of associatien of the Company in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing arucles of
assocation of the Company

5 October 2010

By Order of the Board
D Talisman LLB {Hons) ACIS
Company Secretary

Registered Office 4th Floor
45 Moorfields

London

EC2Y 9AE

DI TS~ -
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Notes to the Notice of Meeting

Entitlement to attend and vote

Only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the
Company as at 6 00 p m on 15 December 2010 {or, if the meeting

15 adjourned, on the date which s two days before the time of the
adjourned meeting) shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
or adjourned meeting in respect of the number of shares registered

in their respective names at that time Changes to the register of
members after that tme will be disregarded in determining the nghts
of any person to attend or vote at the meeting or adjcurned meeting

Any corparation which 1s a member ¢can appoint one or more
corporate representatives who may exerase on its behalf all of its
powers as a member pronded that they do not do so in relation to
the same shares

As at 5 October 2010 (being the last business day before the
publication of this notice), the Company's 1ssued share capital
consisted of 502 180,424 ordinary shares carrying one vote each
Therefore the total voting nghts in the Company are 502,180,424

Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask questions
The Company must cause to be answered any such questron relating
to the business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer
need be given If

s to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the
meeting or involve the disctosure of confidential information,

* the answer has already been given on a website i the form of an
answer to a question, or

* 1tis undesirable in the interests of the company cor the good order
of the meeting that the question be answered

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 527 of the Compantes Act
2006 can require the Company to publish a staternent on 1ts website
setting out any matter relating to

s the audit of the Company's accounts (including the auditor’s
report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before
the meeting, or

* any arcumstances connected with an auditor of the Company
ceasing to hold office since the last Annual General Meeting,
that the members propose to raise at the meeting

The Company cannot require the members requesting the pubfication
1o pay its expenses Any statement placed on the website must also be
sent to the Company's auditors no later than the time the Company
makes the statement avatlable on the website The business which may
be dealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the Company
has been required to publish on 1ts website

Proxaes

A memhber entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 1s entitled

to appoint another person(s) (who need not be a member of the
Company) to exerase all or any of his nghts to attend, speak and vote
at the mestng A member can appoint more than one proxy in relation
to the meeting, prowided that each proxy 1s appointed to exerase the
nghts attaching to different shares held by him

Your proxy could be the Charrman, another director of the Company or
another person who has agreed to attend to represent you Your proxy
will vote as you instruct and must attend the meeting for your vote to
be counted Details of how 1o appoint the Charman or another person
as your proxy using the proxy form are set out In the notes to the proxy
form Appointing a proxy does not preclude you from attending the
meeting and voting in person If you attend the meeting In person,
your proxy appeiniment wili automatically be terminated

An appointiment of proxy 1s prowded with this notice and instructions
for use are shown on the form In order to be vald, a completed
appoiniment of proxy must be returned to the Company by one of
the following methods

+ 1n hard copy form by post, by couner or by hand to the Company's
registrar at the address shown on the form of proxy, or

* by completing it online at www capitashareportal com by
followang the instructions on screen to submit it, or

* n the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electromic
proxy appointment service In accordance wath the procedures set
out below,

and in each case must be received by the Company's registrar's,
Capita Registrars, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for
the meeting

Please note that any electronic communication sent to our registrars
In respect of the appointment of a proxy that is found to contain a
computer wrus will not be accepted

To change your proxy Instructions you may return a new proxy
appointment using the methods set cut above Where you have
appointed a proxy using the hard copy proxy form and would like

to change the instructions using anaother hard copy proxy form,
please contact Capita Registrars The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU The deadline for receipt of proxy
appointments (see above) also apphes in relation to amended
nstructions  Any attempt to terminate or amend a proxy appointment
received after the relevant deadline will be disregarded Where two or
more valid separate appointments of proxy are receved In respect of
the same share in respect of the same meeting, the one which Is last
sent shall be treated as replacing and revoking the other or others




CREST members who wish ta appoint a proxy or proxies by utiising

the CREST electronic proxy appointment senace may do 50 by utihsing
the procedures descnbed n the CREST Manual CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members
who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to thetr
CREST sponsor or voting serace prowvder(s), who will be able to take
the appropriate actton on their behalf

In order for a proxy appomntment made by means of CREST to be
valid, the appropnate CREST message (a "CREST Proxy Instruction ™)
must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK &
Ireland's speaficattons and must contain the information required for
such instructions, as described 1n the CREST Manual The message,
regardless of whether t constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an
amendment to the instruction given to a prevously appointed proxy,
must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be recewved by the
company's agent (ID RA10} by the latest time(s) for receipt of proxy
appointments specfied in the notice of meeting For this purpose,
the time of receipt will be taken to be the tme (as determuned by the
timestamp apphed to the message by the CREST Applications Host)
from which the company's agent 1s able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescnbed by CREST

The Company may treat as invalid 8 CREST Proxy Instruction in the
orcumstances set out In Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated
Securrties Regulations 2001

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or
voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland does
not make available specral procedures in CREST for any particular
messages Normal system timings and mitations will therefare apply
in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility
of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a
CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a
voting service prowider(s), to procure that his CREST spansor or voting
serwice prowider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary 1o ensure
that a message 15 transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
parucular time  In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsars or voting service providers are referred, in particular,
to those sections of the CREST Manwal concerning practical imitations
of the CREST system and timings
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Nominated Persons

A copy of this notice has been sent for information only to persons
who have been nominated by a member to enjoy mformation nghts
under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 ("Nominated Persons")
The nghts to appoint a proxy cannct be exercised by a3 Nominated
Person they can only be exercised by the member However,

a Nomenated Person may have a nght under an agreement between
turn and the member who has nominated him to be appointed as

a proxy for the meeting or to have someone else so appointed If a
Nominated Perscn does not have such a nght or does not wish to
exerase it, he may have a nght under such an agreement to give
instructions to the member as to the exerase of voting nghts

Documents on display

A register of directors’ interests in the share capital and debentures

of the Company, coptes of service agreements under which directors of
the Company are employed, & copy of the new articles of association
proposed to be adopted by Resolution 13, and a copy of the existing
memorandum and articles of assocatton marked to show the changes
beg proposed in Resolution 13 are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal business hours from the
date of this meeting notice and will also be available for inspection at
the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and
during the meeting

A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A
of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at www sportingbetplc com

Electronic addresses .

You may not use any electronic address provided erther in this notice of

annual general meeting or any related documents (incuding the form ‘
of proxy) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other |
than those expressly stated |
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Explanatory notes to the resolutions

Resolution 1

The directors must lay the annual accounis and the respective reports
of the directors and auditors before shareholders at an annual general
meeting

Resolution 2

This Resolutien 1s to approve the directors’ remuneration report for the
year ended 31 July 2010 You can find the report in the remuneration
report In the Annual Report and accounts for the year ended 31 Juty
2010

Resolution 3

A tinal dwidend of 1 1 pence {£0 011) per ordinary share for the

year ended 31 july 2010 is recommended for payment by the directors
If you approve the recommended final dividend this wall be paid on 11
January 2011 to all ordinary shareholders who were on the register

of members at the close of business on 17 December 2010

Resolutions 4 and 5

At each general meeting at which accounts are laid before the
members, the Company 1s required 10 appont auditors to stand until
the next such meeting and Resolution 5 authorises the directors to
set theirr remuneration

Grant Thornton UK LLP have indicated their wish to continue as
the Company's audrtors

Resolutions 6 and 7

Under the Company's artictes of assoaation, each director must stand
for re-election every three years You are therefore asked to re elect
Sean 0'Connor and Nige! Payne as directors of the Company

Resolution 8

Your board considers it appropriate that authority be granted to

allot ardinary shares in the capital of the Company up to a maximum
norminal amount of one hundred and sixty seven thousand, three
hundred and rinety three pounds (£167,393) representing approximately
ore third of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital (excluding
treasury shares) as at 5 October 2010 (the latest pracucable date before
publicauon of this letter) dunng the penod up 1o the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting 1n 2011

In addion  the Association of Britsh Insurers (AB() has said that it

will now consider as routine a resolution to autharise the allotment
of a further one-third of share capital for use in connection with a
nghts 1ssue Your board considers it appropniate to seek this additional
allotment authonty at this year's annual general meeting in order to
take advantage of the flexsbility it offers However, the board has no
present intention of exercising either authonty

As at the date of this letter the Company does not hold any ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company in treasury

Resolution 9
Resolution 9 will empower the directors to allot ordinary shares in
the capnal of the Company for cash on a non-pre-emptive basis

« tnh connection with a nghts Issue or other pro-rata offer to existing
shareholders

e {otherwse than in connection wath a nghts issue) up to a
maximum norminal value of twenty five thousand, one hundred
and nine pounds (£25,109), representing approximately five per
cent of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 5
October 2010 {ihe latest practicable date before publication of
this letter)

Resolution 10

Resolution 10 gives the Company authorty to buy back its own
ordinary shares in the market as permitted by the 2006 Act

The authority imits the number of shares that could be purchased
to a maximum of 50,218,042 (representing approximately 10 per
cent of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital {excluding
treasury shares) as at 5 October 2010 (the latest practicable date
befare publication of this letter) and sets mintmum and maximum
prices This authonty wall expire at the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting in 2011

The directors have no present intention of exeraising the authonty

to purchase the Company's ordinary shares but will keep the

matter under review, taking into account the financtal resources

of the Company, the Company's share pnce and future funding
opportunities The authonty will be exercised only  the directors
beheve that to do so would result In an increase in earnings per share
and would be in the interests of shargholders generally Any purchases
of ordinary shares would be by means of market purchases through
the London Stock Exchange

Listed companies purchasing therr own shares are allowed to hold
them in treasury as an alternative to cancelfling them No dwidends
are pard on shares whilst held in treasury and no voting nghts attach
to treasury shares

If Resolution 1015 passed at the annual general meeting and in
order to respond properly to the Company's capital requirements

and prevailing market conditions, the directors will need to reassess
at the ume of any and each actual purchase whether to hold the
shares In treasury or cancel them, prowded it 15 permitted to do so
The Company may hold a maximurmn of up to 10 per cent of 1ts issued
share capital in treasury in accordance with guidelines issued by the
Association of Bntish Insurers

As at 5 October 2010 {the latest practicable date befare publication of
this letter), there were warrants and options over 19,181,226 ordinary
shares i the capnal of the Company representing 3 82 per cent of the
Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital (excluding treasury shares) If
the authority to purchase the Company's ordinary shares was exerased
n full, these warrants and options would represent 4 24 per cent of
the Cormmpany’s 1ssued ordinary share capital {excluding treasury shares)




Resolution 11

Resolution 11 1s designed to deal with the rules on political donations
contamned in the 2006 Act Political donations to any palitical partes,
independent election candidates or political orgamisations or the
incurnng of political expenditure are prohibited unless authonsed

by shareholders in advance What canstitutes a political donation,

a political party, a pobitical organisation, or pelitical expenditure 15

not easy to deade, as the legislation 1s capable of wade interpretation
Sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees
fulfilling public duties and support for bodies representing the business
community n policy review ar reform, may fall wathin this

Therefore, notwithstanding that the Company has not made a political
donation in the past, and has no intention ether now or In the future
of making any political donation or incurring any poliical expenditure
in respect of any political party, political organisation or independent
election candidate, the board has decided to put forward Resoluticn

11 to renew the authonty granted by shareholders at the last annual
general meeting of the Company This will allow the Company to
continue to support the community and put forward its views to wader
business and Government interests without runming the risk of being in
breach of the law As permitted under the 2006 Act, Resolution 11 has
also been extended to cover any political donations made, or political
expenditure incurred, by any subsidianes of the Company

Resolution 12

1t is proposed in Resolution 12 that shareholders should approve the
continued ability of the Company to hold general meetings other than
the annual general meeting on 14 clear days' notice

The flexibility offered by this resolution wall be used where, taking into
account all the arcumstances, the directors consider this appropniate in
relation to the business to he considered at the meeting

This resolution 1s required under section 307A of the 2006 Act Under
that sectton, a traded company which wishes to be able to call general
meetings (other than an annual general meeting) on 14 clear days'
notice must abtamn shareholders’ approval Resolution 12 seeks such
approval

The resolution 1s valid up to the next annual general meeting and so
will need to be renewed annually The Company will also need to meet
the requirements for voting by electronic means under section 307A
before 1t can call a general meeting on 14 days' notice

Resolution 13

It 15 proposed in Resclution 13 to adopt new articles of assocation
(the “New Arucles™) in order to update the Company's current
articles (the "Current Articles") pnmanly to take account of changes
in English company law brought about by the corming into force

of the Comparmes (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 (the
*Shareholders’ Rights Regulations™) and the prowisions of the
Companies Act 2006 which came into force on 1 October 2009

The principal changes between the Current Articles and the New
Artides are summansed in Appendix T Other changes which are

of a minor, technical or clarifying nature and atso some mare miner
changes which merely reflect changes made by the 2006 Act or, the
Shareholders’ Rights Regulations have not been mentioned specifically
The New Articles showing all the changes to the Current Articles are
avallable for inspection, as noted an page 101
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Appendix 1.

Explanatory notes of principal changes to the company's articles of association

i The Company's objects

The prowisions regulating the operations of the Company are currently
set out n the Company's memaorandum and articles of assocration
The Company's memorandum contains, among other things, the
objects clause which sets out the scope of the actvities the Company
15 authorised to undertake This is drafted to give a wide scope

The Companies Act 2006 (* 2006 Act”) Act significantly reduces the
constitutional significance of a company's memorandum The 2006
Act provides that a memorandum wall record only the names of
subscribers and the number of shares each subscnber has agreed to
take in the company Under the 2006 Act the objects clause and all
other provisions which are contained in 3 company’s memorandum,
for existing companues at 1 October 2009, are deemed to be contaned
In the company's articles of association but the company can remove
these prowistons by speaal resolution

Further, the 2006 Act states that unless a company's articles provde
otherwise, 3 company's objects are unrestricted This abolishes the
need for companies 1o have objects dauses For this reason the
Company 15 propasing 1o remove 1ts objects clause together wath all
other prowisions of its memorandum which, by virtue of the 2006 AQt,
are treated as forming part of the Company's articles of association as
of 1 October 2009 Paragraph (1) of resolution 13 confirms the removal
of these prowisions for the Company As the effect of this resolution wall
be to remove the staterment currently in the Company's memerandum
of assocration regarding limited liability, the new articles of association
{*"New Articles") to be adopted by Resolution 13 also contain an
express statement regarding the imited lrablity of shareholders

2 Authonsed share capital and umissued shares

The 2006 Act abolishes the requirement for a company to have an
authonised share capital and the New Articles reflect this Directors wall
still be limited as to the number of shares they can at any time allot
because allotment authority continues to be required under the 2006
Act, save In respect of employee share schemes

3 Redeemable shares

Under the Comparnies Act 1985, if a company wished 10 1ssue
redeemable shares, it had to include in its articles the terms and
manner of redemption The 2006 Act enables directors to determine
such matters instead prowvided they are so authanised by the articles
The New Arucles now contain such an authonisation The Company has
no plans 1o 1ssue redeemable shares but if it cid so the directors would
need shareholders' authonty to 1ssue new shares n the usual way

4 Uncertificated shares

The New Articles contain updated prowisions regarding uncertificated
shares reflectng the changes introduced by the Uncertficated
Securiies Regulations 2001 (as amended)

5 Suspension of registration of share transfers

The Company's current arircles of association (" Current Articles”)
permit the directors to suspend the registration of transfers Under the
2006 Act share transfers must be registered as soon as practicable
The power in the Current Articles to suspend the registration of
transfers 1s Inconsistent with this requirement Accordingly, this
power has been removed in the New Articles

6 Authority to purchase own shares, consahidate and
sub-divide shares, and reduce share capntal

Under the Companies Act 1985, a company required spedific enabling
prowisions in 1ts arucles to purchase its own shares, 1o consolidate

or sub-divide its shares and to reduce its share capital or other
undistributabte reserves as well as sharehotder authonty to undertake
the relevant action The Current Articles include these enabling
provisions Under the 2006 Act a company only requires shareholder
authonty 1o do any of these things and it 1s no longer necessary

for articles to contain enabling prowvisions Accordingly, the relevant
enabling provisions have been removed in the New Artictes

7 Notice of General Meetings

The Compames (Shareholders' Rights) Regulations 2009 (the
~Shareholders' Rights Regulations™) amend the 2006 Act to require
the company to give 21 clear days' notice of general meetings unless
the company offers members an electronic voting facility and a special
resolution reducing the penod of nouce to not less than 14 days has
been passed Annual general meetings must be held on 21 dear days*
notice The New Articles amend the provistons of the Current Aricles
10 be consistent with the new requirements

8 Adjournment for lack of quorum

Under the 2006 Act as amended by the Shareholders’ Rights
Regulations, general meetings adjourned for lack of quorum must
be held at least 10 clear days after the onginal meeting The Current
Articles have been changed to reflect this requirement




9 Chairman's casting vote

The new articles remove the provision gmang the chairman a casting
vote in the event of an equality of votes as this 1s no longer permitted
under the 2006 Act

10 Voting by proxies on a show of hands

The Sharehclders' Rights Regulations have amended the 2006 Act so
that it now provides that each proxy appointed by a member has one
vote on a show of hands unless the proxy 1s appointed by more than
one member in which case the proxy has one vote for and one vote
against If the proxy has been instructed by one or more members to
vote for the resolution and by one or more members to vote against
the resolution The New Articles remove provisions in the Current
Articles dealing with proxy voting on the basis that these are dealt with
in the 2006 Act and contain a provision clarifying how the provision of
the 2006 Act giving a proxy a second vote on a show of hands should
apply to discretianary authorittes

11 Voting by corporate representatives

The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations have also amended the 2006
Act in order to enable multiple representatives appomted by the same
corporate member to vote in different ways on a show of hands

and a poll The New Aructes contain provisions which reflect these
amendments

12 Provision for employees on cessation of business

The 2006 Act provides that the powers of the directors of a company
to make prowviston for a persan employed or formerly employed by the
company or any of its subsidianes in connection with the cessation or
transfer to any person of the whole or part of the undertaking of the
company or that subsidiary may only be exerased by the directors if
they are so authonsed by the company's articles or by the company

in general meeting The New Articles prowde that the directars may
exerqse this power
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13 ARernate Directors

The New Articles contain new wording allowing the Company not to
give notice of meetings to an alternate director who 1s absent from the
United Kingdom unless he leaves an address or an electronic address
for the purpose of sending notices

A new prowvision also entitles an alternate director to be indemnified
by the Company to the same extent as If he were a director

14 Use of seal

Under the 1985 Act, a company required authority in its articles to
have an official seal for use abroad Under the 2006 Act, such authonty
will no longer be required Accordingly, the relevant authorisatron will
be removed in the new articles

15 General

Generally the opportunity has been taken to bring clearer language into
the New Articles and in some areas to conform the language of the
New Articles with that used In the model articles for publbc companies
produced by the Department for Business, innovation and Skalls
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Shareholders’ Information

Registrars
All enquirtes relating to shares or shareholdings should be addressed to

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woaodsome Park

Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield

West Yorkshire HD8 OLA

Sharehelder Helpline No 0871 664 0300 - calls cost 10p per min plus
network extras, lines are open 8 30am-5 30pm Mon-Frt
Facsimile 01484 600 911

www sportingbetplc.com

The Company's website prowides, amongst cther things, the latest
news and details of the Company’s actmties, share price information
and links to the websites of our brands The mnvestor relations section
of www sportingbetplc com contains up-to-date information including
the Company’s latest results, the Company’s financal calendar and
archived webcasts

www.sportingbet-shares.com

Shareholders who prefer to receive communications about the
Company by email are encouraged 1o register ther detalls at the
Companys shareholder portal - www sportingbet-shares com
You will need your investor code {found on your share certificate
or on correspondence from Capita Registrars) to complete this
process at the first tme of registering  Capita Registrars wall send
you a username and aclivation code by post and upon receipt,
you will then be able to access the Company’s shareholder portal
The shareholder portal provides shareholders of the Company
with the ability to choose from the following services

* Annual Report and Accounts, AGM and EGM
notices and webcasts

Shareholders can choose to have these emailed to a specified
emall address rather than by post,

+ Web proxy voting
Shareholders can vote at AGMs or EGMs through www sportingbet-
shares com or alternatively via www caprtaregistrars com by chicking
on the quick-log-in-link and entenng Sportingbet as the company
name You will need your investor code for this senace,

* Announcements made to the Alternative
Investment Market

UK based shareholders can choose to recerve certain RNS
announcemnents by emal,

+ Direct dividend payments

Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank ar buillding
society account There are  two primary benefits of this service

a) There I1s no chance of your divdend chegue going missing in
the post, and b} The dividend payment 15 received more quickly
because the cash sum 1s paid directly into the account on the
payment date without the need to pay in the cheque and wait for
1t to clear As an alternative, shareholders can download a dwidend
mandate and complete and post to Capita Registrars,

* Change of address

Shareholders can change their address directly online at
www sportingbet-shares com or by notifying Capita Registrars
in writing at the above address,

* Your shareholding

Shareholders can value therr shareholding and view previous
transactions in the Company’s shares, and

» Share dealing

A share dealing serwice 15 available to the Company’s shareholders
to buy or sell the Company’s shares at Capita Share Dealing
Services via www sporungbetple com or www sporungbet-shares
com Telephone dealing 15 also avalable via Capita Regstrars on
0871 664 0445 calls cost 10p per min plus network extras

Please note that the Directors of the Company are not seeking to
encourage shareholders to either buy or sell the Company’s shares
Shareholders of the Company who are in any doubt as to what
action to take are recommended to seek financial advice from an
independent financial adwiser authorised by the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000

Non-shareholders can register to receive notifications of the Company’s
Annual Report and Accounts, and webcasts at
www sportingbetplc com

Lost share certificate

If your share certificate 1s lost or stolen, you: should immediately contact
Caprta Registrars Shareholder Helphine No 0871 664 0300 - calls cost
10p per min plus network extras who will adwvise on the process for
arranging a replacement

Duplicate shareholder accounts

If, as a shareholder, you receive more than one copy of a communicaton
from the Company you may have your shares registered i at least

two accounts This happens when the registrabon details of separate
transactions differ shghtly # you wash to conschdate such multiple
accounts, please call Capita Registrars Shareholder Helpline No 0871
664 0300 - calls cost 10p per min plus network extras

ShareGift

ShareGift, 15 & chanty share donation scheme It 1s a free service for
shareholders wishing to give shares to chantable causes It may be
useful for those who wash to dispose of a small parcel of shares which
would ¢ost more 1o sell than they are worth There are no capital gans
tax implications (1 @ no gain or loss) on gifts of shares to chanty and it
15 also possible to obtamn income tax relief Further information can be
found at www sharegift org

Financial Calendar

Ex-dwidend date for 2010 dwdend 15 December 2010

Record date for 2010 dvdend 17 December 2010

Annual General Meeting at 4th Floor, 45 Moorfields, London EC2Y
9AE 17 December 2010

Final dvdend payment date for the financial year ended 31 July 2010
11 January 2011




Financial Summary

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 July 2006 31 July 2007 37 July 2008 31 July 2009 31 July 2010
UK GAAP: IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
fm £m fm £m fm
Amounts wagered 20609 1,060 9 13478 1,577 2 197113
Net gaming revenue 3033 172 1443 1636 2075
Operating profit before
exceptional items, share 103 4 78 247 31 354
option charge and amortisation
Exceptional items - (26 8) (120) 42) (24 5)
Share optton charge (67) (99) (8 0) 31 {20)
Amortisation 22 1) (18) 39 {(19) (18)
Group operating profit/(loss) 746 {307) (08) 219 71
Net finance income (30) 10 04 04 {02)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 716 {29 7) 12 223 6.9
Taxation - (12) (35 (05) (30}
Profit/{loss) for the penod 716 (30 9) 23 218 39
Loss for the penod from
discontinued operations ) (281 3) 20 @4 )
Group profit/(loss) for the penod 716 (312 2) (43 124 39
Earnings per share
Basic 17 7p (73 2)p 05Sp 4 6p 08p
Basic adjusted 24 9p 44p 4 8p 6 Sp 65p
Diluted adjusted 23 8p 40p 42n 60p 62p

The period ended 31 July 2006 1s stated under UK GAAP as 1t 1s not pracuical to restate amounts for period prior to the date of transition to IFRS

The principal differences between UK GAAP and IFRS are discussed in Note 27 of the 2008 Annual Report and Accounts
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